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This document, Galapagos Annual Brochure 2006, contains the required information for an annual brochure,
as per the Belgian Code of Companies.
LANGUAGE OF THE ANNUAL REPORT
According to Belgian law, Galapagos must publish its Annual Brochure in Dutch. The Company has also
prepared an English translation. In case of differences in interpretation, the Dutch version takes precedence.
Galapagos is responsible for the translation and conformity between the Dutch and English versions.
AVAILABILITY OF THE ANNUAL BROCHURE
This document is available to the public free of charge and upon request:
Galapagos NV
Investor Relations
Generaal De Wittelaan L11 A3
B-2800 Mechelen, Belgium
Tel: +32 15 34 29 00
ir@glpg.com
For informational purposes, an electronic version of the Annual Brochure 2006 is available on the website of
Galapagos, www.glpg.com.
Only the printed version of the Annual Brochure 2006 is legally valid. Galapagos will use reasonable efforts
to ensure the accuracy of the electronic version of the Annual Report, but does not assume responsibility if
inaccuracies or inconsistencies with the printed document arise as a result of any electronic transmission.
Other information on the website of Galapagos or on other websites do not form a part of this Annual
Report.
REGISTRATION DOCUMENT
At the date this brochure was made, Galapagos is in the process of finalizing a 2006 registration document
and transaction note. These documents will contain more detailed information about the risks, the business
in which Galapagos operates, corporate governance, and the share transactions realized in December 2006.
Galapagos expects to have the registration document and transaction note available on its website before the
end of March 2007 at www.glpg.com/investor/financial_reports.htm.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
The Annual Brochure 2006 may contain forward-looking statements, including, without limitation, statements
containing the words “believes”, “anticipates”, “expects”, “intends”, “plans”, “seeks”, “estimates”, “may”,
“will” and “continues” as well as similar expressions. Such forward-looking statements may involve known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which might cause the actual results, financial condition,
performance or achievements of Galapagos, or industry results, to be materially different from any future
results, financial conditions, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. Given these uncertainties, the reader is advised not to place any undue reliance on such
forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of publication of
this document. Galapagos expressly disclaims any obligation to update any such forward-looking statements
in this document to reflect any change in its expectations with regard thereto or any change in events,
conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based, unless required by law or regulation.

2

TABLE OF CONTENTS
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED 2006 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS…………………………………. 4
CONSOLIDATED REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS…………………………………………… 5
REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS………………………………………………………………… 9
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006………..11
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER…………………………………………………… 12
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER……….13
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUIY……………………… 14
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 2006 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS…………………………… 15

AUDITED NON-CONSOLIDATED 2006 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS…………………………55
NON-CONSOLIDATED REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS…………………………………… 56
REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS…………………………………………………………………67
SUMMARY OF NON-CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2006…………………………………………………………………………………………………..71
NON-CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006…73

3

GLPG
2006

Consolidated Financial Statements

4

Board of Directors’ Report to the Shareholders for the Financial Year ending December 31,
2006 (consolidated results)
Ladies and Gentlemen,
Dear Shareholders,
We hereby have the pleasure of presenting to you our report relating to the consolidated results of the
Galapagos Group for the financial year that ended on 31 December 2006.
The companies of which the results are consolidated are Galapagos NV (Mechelen, Belgium), Galapagos
Genomics BV (Leiden, The Netherlands), BioFocus plc and its subsidiaries (Saffron Walden, UK and US),
BioFocus DPI AG (Basel, Switzerland) and its subsidiary DPI GmbH (Heidelberg, Germany), Inpharmatica
Ltd. (London and Cambridge, UK), and ProSkelia SASU (Romainville, France).

The drug discovery operations of Discovery Partners International Inc were acquired on 6 July 2006.
Inpharmatica Ltd was acquired on 6 December 2006 and ProSkelia SASU on 22 December 2006.
Overview of development, result and position of the Group
Our major achievements during 2006 included the following: We signed our first turn-key drug discovery
alliance with GSK in the field of osteoarthritis, through an agreement worth up to €137 million plus
royalties to Galapagos. Our BioFocus DPI service division was expanded through two acquisitions and is
now one of the world's leading providers of target and drug discovery services. The year 2006 also
marked an important step towards our goal to develop novel drugs in bone and joint diseases, with
significant progress in our internal drug discovery programs as well as and the acquisition of the ProSkelia
product portfolio. The Company raised €42 million in two private placements this year to fund the
development of the combined development programs into the clinical testing phase. We enter 2007 as a
well-balanced company, combining a therapeutics division developing a strong portfolio in bone and joint
diseases with our BioFocus DPI service division that contains all components to provide superior service
for pharma, biotech and non-profit organizations in their need for targets through to pre-clinical
candidates.
Turn-key alliance in osteoarthritis with GSK
On June 7th 2006, Galapagos and GlaxoSmithKline’s Center of Excellence for External Drug Discovery
(CEEDD) announced a turn-key drug discovery and development alliance in osteoarthritis worth up to
€137 million in upfront, milestone, and equity payments and up to double-digit royalties on commercial
products. Galapagos will build upon its existing osteoarthritis programs to deliver drug candidates from
target through to clinical phase IIa proof of concept. This alliance confirmed the strategic rationale for
the BioFocus acquisition in 2005 and validated the Company’s bone and joint disease programs. The first
milestone in this alliance was announced in January 2007. Our ability to establish such an alliance with a
top-tier pharma partner is a confirmation of the value of our technologies, expertise, and people.
Research and development
We significantly increased our investment in research, and this has allowed our scientists to make
excellent progress in finding lead compounds against several of our proprietary drug targets.
In our rheumatoid arthritis (RA) program our lead compounds have shown good pharmacokinetic
properties and efficacy in relevant animal models of the disease. These leads also show substantial
protection against bone loss in the industry standard RA animal models. These compounds target a
proprietary kinase protein that was identified using the Galapagos’ SilenceSelect discovery platform.
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Based on these important results, Galapagos anticipates initiation of preclinical studies in 2007, with a
candidate drug entering clinical phase I in 2008.
In the osteoarthritis (OA) program, Galapagos achieved Proof of Principle in a standard industry OA
model, showing ex vivo protection of bovine cartilage explants. Galapagos has several series of
proprietary compounds in hit-to-lead and lead optimization that have potential to deliver a novel
therapeutic for the treatment of OA. Next to RA, this is the second Proof of Principle for compounds
targeting proteins identified using the Galapagos SilenceSelect technology, which further validates the
target discovery technology.
ProSkelia
With the acquisition of ProSkelia on 22 December 2006, Galapagos enhanced its product portfolio with the
addition of three programs in bone diseases (osteoporosis and bone metastasis), and one in cachexia
(muscle atrophy and weight loss). The combined drug discovery portfolio will contribute to Galapagos’
goal of having multiple clinical programs in bone and joint diseases in 2008. The transaction with
ProSkelia also included an exclusive option and license to oestradiol glucoside (E2G), a product for
treatment of menopausal symptoms (‘hot flashes’). Galapagos has started the preparations to initiate a
phase IIb clinical trial for this compound in Q4 of 2007. In addition to its programs, the acquisition of
ProSkelia contributes capabilities and facilities which will be used to accelerate the development of all
Galapagos programs in bone and joint diseases.
BioFocus DPI taking a leadership position in drug discovery services
Following on the acquisition by Galapagos in October 2005, BioFocus integrated the former Galadeno
division into the BioFocus operations to create a fully integrated drug discovery division with services
ranging from target discovery through to delivery of pre-clinical candidates. In June 2006, Galapagos
acquired the drug discovery operations of Discovery Partners International (DPI) for €4.3 million, adding
synthetic and natural compound collections, additional medicinal chemistry expertise and facilities in the
USA, Switzerland and Germany. The acquisition also brought significant additional revenues and new
clients in the US and Japan to BioFocus. As a result of this acquisition, the name of the service division
was changed to BioFocus DPI.
In December 2006, Galapagos acquired UK based Inpharmatica in an all share transaction for €12.5
million plus an earn-out, to add chemogenomics and ADMET database products for target and compound
selection to the division’s service offering. BioFocus DPI now has one of the most complete target-topreclinical candidate offerings in the industry and serves an impressive list of pharmaceutical, biotech and
non-profit customers. BioFocus DPI is dedicated to excellent drug discovery technology, and the
development of novel candidate drugs is a core competency, positioning this division to outpace market
growth rates in 2007.
Financials
Revenue
Galapagos' revenues for the full year 2006 more than tripled to €35.2 million (2005: €11.2 million). Of
these revenues, €31 million were generated by BioFocus DPI. The Drug Discovery division contributed €4
million to Group revenues.
Results
BioFocus DPI contributed approximately €3.4 million to the result of the Group on a segment basis in
2006. The Group net loss for the full year 2006 was €11.3 million, or €0.84 per share, compared to €6.5
million, or €0.73 per share for 2005.
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The main contributing factor to the planned increase of the net loss was an increase in research and
development costs from €8.9 million to €15.9 million. The method of measuring R&D expenditure has
been changed in order to better reflect the true nature of the costs involved, following the Proskelia
acquisition and increased importance of our R&D spend within the group. Galapagos now includes
indirect costs such as premises costs, support staff and other site related costs. These costs would
previously have been shown in G&A. Therefore, the comparatives for 2005 and 2004 have been updated
to reflect these changes. Before the change, the investment in R&D would have been €12.1 million in
2006, in line with guidance.
Cash flow and cash position
Galapagos’ cash and cash equivalents amounted to €51.5 million on 31 December 2006 up from €23.6
million at the end of 2005.
Through private placements on 19 September 2006 (€11 million) and 22 December 2006 (€31 million),
Galapagos raised €40.3 million net of costs. After making an estimate for the cash acquired with
Inpharmatica, for which shares are to be issued, and removing the purchase price of the acquisition of
DPI of €4.3 million, the full year cash burn was €11.9 million.
The companies of the Group continued to hold the necessary permits for its exploitation, and
environmental rules were carefully respected.
On the level of staffing, the Company’s core teams have remained stable and all companies of the Group
have been successful in attracting new employees with various types of high-level industry experience,
including in biology, medicinal chemistry and business. The Group’s total number of staff as per 31
December 2006 was 454.
Risk factors
Typically for a biotechnology group, the Company is confronted with a number of risks and uncertainties.
We would like to highlight the following risks: (i) the success of Galapagos is uncertain due to its limited
operating history, its history of operating losses and the uncertainty of future profitability, (ii) Galapagos
will need additional capital in the future to sufficiently fund its operations and research; (iii) there is a high
risk that early-stage drug discovery and development might not successfully generate good drug
candidates; (iv) Galapagos might not be able to commercialize its drug candidates successfully if problems
arise in the testing and approval process or if competitors develop technologies which are more effective
than those of Galapagos (v) most of Galapagos’ expected future revenues are contingent upon
collaborative and license agreements; (vi) Galapagos’ success is dependent on intellectual property rights
held by it and third parties and it’s interest in such rights is complex and uncertain; (vii) due to its lack of
experience in conducting clinical trials and manufacturing, Galapagos need to rely on third parties which
may delay its clinical trials, or may jeopardize regulatory approval for its product candidates if such third
parties do not perform as contractually required or expected.
Significant events that took place after the end of the financial year
The following significant events were announced by the Group after the end of the financial year:
• Expansion of longstanding collaboration with Amgen into 2008
• Resignations of Wilson Totten and David Stone from the board of Directors
• Appointment of Rudi Pauwels as new, independent Board member, effective 1 January 2007;
• License agreement with Hillcrest Pharmaceuticals for the PPAR-S program with license fees amounting
to €770,000, up to €27M in potential milestones, undisclosed milestone payments in Hillcrest equity
and single digit royalties on commercial products arising from the program
• New services collaboration with the University of Bristol with a total contract value in excess of
€2,000,000 over 2 years
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Prospects
Galapagos raised €42 million in 2006 to provide the necessary funding to bring the Company’s bone &
joint programs into the clinic in 2008 and 2009. We are gratified by the strong support from the
participating European and American institutions and all our shareholders for our ambitious plans. For the
year 2007 and beyond, we will continue to build on the strategies that have marked our progress. We
will work hard to maintain Galapagos’ high standard of growth. With continued support of our
shareholders, we are well positioned to leverage the position we built in 2006, moving us closer to a
leadership position in European biotechnology.
Galapagos intends to publish its 2006 Prospectus during March 2007. This document will contain more
detailed information about risks, the businesses the company operates, corporate governance, and the
all-share transactions completed in December 2006. The 2006 Prospectus will be made available on the
Company website: www.glpg.com/investor/financial_reports.htm.

Mechelen, 1 March 2007
The Board of Directors
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Report of the Statutory Auditor – consolidated
STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2006
To the shareholders
As required by law and the company’s articles of association, we are pleased to report to you on the audit
assignment which you have entrusted to us. This report includes our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements together with the required additional comment.

Unqualified audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Galapagos NV (“the company”) and
its subsidiaries (jointly “the group”), prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union and with the legal and regulatory requirements applicable in Belgium to
quoted companies. Those consolidated financial statements comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
31 December 2006, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as the summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes. The consolidated balance sheet shows total assets of
167.646 (000) EUR and a consolidated loss for the year then ended of 11.335 (000) EUR.
The financial statements of one entity included in the scope of consolidation which represent total assets of
9.450 (000) EUR and a total result of 0 (000) EUR have been audited by other auditors. Our opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts contributed by that
entity, is based upon the reports of those other auditors.
The board of directors of the company is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. This responsibility includes among other things: designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with legal requirements and auditing standards applicable in Belgium, as
issued by the “Institut des Reviseurs d’Entreprises/Instituut der Bedrijfsrevisoren”. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
In accordance with these standards, we have performed procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we have considered internal
control relevant to the group’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s internal control. We have assessed the basis of
the accounting methods used, the consolidation policies, the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the company and the presentation of the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole.
Finally, the board of directors and responsible officers of the company have replied to all our requests for
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explanations and information. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, together with the
reports of other auditors on which we have relied, provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, and based, to the extent necessary upon the reports of other auditors, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the group’s financial position as of 31 December 2006,
and of its results and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and with the legal and regulatory requirements applicable in
Belgium to quoted companies.
Additional comments
The preparation and the assessment of the information that should be included in the directors’ report on the
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the board of directors.
Our responsibility is to include in our report the following additional comments which do not change the
scope of our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements:
-

The directors’ report on the consolidated financial statements includes the information required by
law and is in agreement with the consolidated financial statements. However, we are unable to
express an opinion on the description of the principle risks and uncertainties confronting the group,
or on the status, future evolution, or significant influence of certain factors on its future
development. We can, nevertheless, confirm that the information given is not in obvious
contradiction with any information obtained in the context of our appointment.

Diegem, 1 March 2007

The Statutory Auditor

________________________________________________
DELOITTE Bedrijfsrevisoren / Reviseurs d’Entreprises
SC s.f.d. SCRL
Represented by Gert Vanhees
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Consolidated income statements for the year ended 31 December
Thousands of €
Revenues
Cost of sales

Notes
4

2006
35,152

2005
11,240

2004
7,777

5

-19,533

-4,829

-1,288

15,619

6,411

6,489

5
5
5
5
5

2,993
-15,863
-11,963
-1,972
-621

78
-8,900
-3,537
-421
-281

-7,343
-2,620
-134

5,6

-11,807

-6,650

-3,608

7
8

370
-1,057

368
-369

202
-162

-12,494

-6,651

-3,568

Gross profit
Other income
R&D Expenditure
General and administrative costs
Sales and marketing expenses
Integration costs
Operating loss
Finance income
Finance costs
Loss before tax
Current income tax charges

9

1,159

110

-21

NET LOSS FOR THE YEAR

10

-11,335

-6,541

-3,589

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue (‘000)

10

13,543

8,936

5,939

Basic and diluted loss per share in €

10

-0.84

-0.73

-0.60
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Consolidated balance sheets at 31 December
Assets
Thousands of €
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Goodwill
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Available for sale financial assets
Other non-current assets

Notes
11
12
13
21
15
16

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
TOTAL ASSETS

14
16
17

2006
87,781
35,560
17,844
25,965
727
1,054
6,631

2005
45,018
29,481
4,869
9,399

2004
3,072

79,865
3,499
24,847
51,519
167,646

36,545
3,142
9,786
23,617
81,563

12,541
98
2,169
10,274
15,613

2006
109,542
104,396
44,170
9
-39,034

2005
61,136
69,049
19,816
3
-27,731

2004
10,367
31,557

58,104

20,427

5,246

28,826
905
22,089
594
4,595
643

6,362

1,638

1,542
4,606
214

225
1,413

29,278
556
3,172

14,065

3,608
106

25,431
119

2,967
394
9,568
1,136

2,766
736

167,646

81,563

15,613

447
2,625

978
291

Equity and liabilities
Thousands of €
TOTAL EQUITY
Share capital
Share premium account
Translation differences
Accumulated losses

Notes
19
36
36

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Pension liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

27
25
21
22
24

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions
Financial lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Current income tax payable

25
22
20
24
9

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
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-21,190

Consolidated cash flow statements for the years ended 31 December
Thousands of €
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

Notes

2006

2005

2004

23,617

10,274

13,036

-11,807

-6,650

-3,608

3,480
1,246
10

941
374

763
332
93

-68
703
-74
-2,425

-219

-8,933

-5,554

-2,512

293
-3,487
7,326

943
-2,319
3,377
-7

51
844
-936

Cash used in operations
Interest paid and other financial costs
Taxes

-4,801
-1,057
-3,452

-3,560
-369
42

-2,553
-157

NET CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

-9,310

-3,887

-2,710

-4,120
-146
1,798

-1,061
-50
-2,807

-103
-45

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

-2,468

-3,918

-148

Repayment of obligations under finance leases
Proceeds of capital increases, net of issue costs
Proceeds from share issues
Interest received and other financial income

-1,553
40,949

-106

370

-351
20,821
322
368

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

39,766

21,160

96

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

27,986

13,355

-2,762

-86

-12

51,519

23,617

Result from operations
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible fixed assets
Impairment loss on intangible assets
Exchange gain on translation of net assets of
subsidiary
Share based compensation
Increase provisions
Negative goodwill
Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

13
12

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in receivables
Increase/(decrease) in payables
Increase/(decrease) in provisions

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of and expenditure in intangible fixed assets
Acquisition of subsidiary

12
32
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Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

13

202

10,274

Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders equity
Thousands of €
Balance on 1 January 2004
Share based compensation
Net loss for the year
Balance on 31 December
2004
Capital increase
Cost of capital increase
BioFocus acquisition
Share based compensation
Unissued shares for BioFocus
Net loss for the year
Translation difference
Balance on 31 December
2005

Share
capital
31,552

Share
premium

Translation
difference

5
31,557
17,675
-1,962
18,934
235
2,610

19,816

703
35,781
-1,596
459
104,396

5
-3,589

-21,190

10,367

-6,541

22,551
-1,962
33,873
235
2,610
-6,541
3

-27,731

61,137

6

33

39

-11,335

-11, 335
703
60,135
-1,596
459

24,354

44,170

Total

3

Net result

Balance at
31 December 2006

-3,589

14,939

Exchanged differences on
translating foreign operations

Share based compensation
Issue of share capital
Cost of capital increase
Exercise warrants

13,951

4,877

3
69,049

Retained
earnings
-17,601

9

-39,034

109,542

The consolidated financial statements of Galapagos NV (hereafter the “Group”) were approved by the
Board of Directors and authorized for issue on 1 March 2007. They were signed on its behalf by:

Onno van de Stolpe
Executive Director
1 March 2007
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. General information

Galapagos NV (“the Company” or “the Group”) is a limited liability company incorporated in Belgium and
has its registered office at Generaal De Wittelaan L11/A3, 2800 Mechelen, Belgium.
Galapagos NV is a biotechnology company founded in 1999 as a joint venture between Crucell BV and
Tibotec NV, which focuses on the identification of disease modifying drug targets and the subsequent
development of breakthrough medicine based on these targets, commercialized through a separate
business unit, which until the acquisition of BioFocus plc (“BioFocus”) operated under the trade name of
Galadeno.
On 6 May 2005 Galapagos NV raised €22.4 million in an initial public offering on Euronext Brussels (ticker
symbol: GLPG) and Euronext Amsterdam (GLPGA), amounting to a net cash contribution of €20.8 million.
On 17 October 2005 the Company agreed to acquire 100% of the share capital of BioFocus, a company
listed on the Alternative Investment Market (AiM) and incorporated in the United Kingdom when its all
share offer became unconditional. BioFocus plc was immediately de-listed and Galapagos NV was
admitted for trading on AiM (ticker symbol: GLPG). As of 31 December 2005 the Company owned 92.6%
of the issued share capital of BioFocus plc, with the remaining shares acquired on 9 January 2006.
On 6 July 2006 the Company acquired 100% of the share capital of the subsidiaries of Discovery Partners
International Inc, but not of the parent company. The entities which were bought with cash are ChemRx
Inc (now BioFocus DPI Inc), a company incorporated in the US, and DPI AG (now BioFocus DPI AG), a
company incorporated in Switzerland and their subsidiaries (a full list of which can be found at note 32).
On 19 September 2006 Galapagos NV raised €11.1 million in a public offering on Euronext Brussels (ticker
symbol: GLPG) and Euronext Amsterdam (GLPGA), amounting to a net cash contribution of €10.7 million.
On 6 December 2006, the Company agreed to acquire 100% of the share capital of Inpharmatica Ltd, a
company incorporated in the UK, when its all share offer became unconditional. At the balance sheet
date, the company owned 100% of the share capital of Inpharmatica.
On 22 December 2006 the Company acquired 100% of the share capital of ProSkelia SASU, incorporated
in France, from ProStrakan plc. ProSkelia was bought in exchange for new shares, in a deal which also
involved the repayment of cash balances to ProStrakan immediately following the transfer of ownership,
with the effect that the net consideration did not include any cash. At the same time Galapagos NV raised
€31 million in a public offering on Euronext Brussels (ticket symbol: GLPG) and Euronext Amsterdam
(GLPGA), amounting to a net cash contribution of €29.6 million.
A complete list of all companies owned by Galapagos, is detailed at note 31.
These financial statements are presented in Euros.

2. Accounting policies
Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU. The principal accounting policies used for the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
The Group did not early apply the following Standards and Interpretations which were issued at the date
of authorization of these financial statements but not yet effective on the balance sheet date:
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments : Disclosures (applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2007)
IFRS 8 Operating Segments (applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009)
IAS1 Presentation of Financial Statements - amendment. Capital Disclosures (applicable for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007)
IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies (applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006)
IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2 (applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006)
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives (applicable for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 June 2006)
IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment (applicable for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 November 2006)
IFRIC 11 IFRS2 – Group and Treasury Share Transactions (applicable for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 March 2007)
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements (applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2008)

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations in future periods will
have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group except for additional disclosures on
capital and financial instruments when the relevant standards come into effect for periods commencing on
or after 1 January 2007.

Going Concern basis

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financing
Reporting Standards (IFRS) published by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and the
interpretations issued by the IASB’s International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee, which
have been endorsed by the European Commission.
The consolidated financial statements provide a general overview of the Group’s activities and the results
achieved. They give a true and fair view of the entity’s financial position, its financial performance and
cash flows, on a going concern basis.
To improve the balance sheet structure and finance the investments, the board of Directors decided to
increase the capital by €11.1 million on 19 September and €31 million on 22 December as detailed under
General Information note 1.

Group accounting

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year. Together these
comprise the Group. Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of another entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of
acquisition up to the date when control ceases to exist.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the
accounting policies used in line with those used by the Group.
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any
cost directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 are recognized at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, which
are recognized and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Business combinations and related goodwill

Goodwill arising on business combinations represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. All business combinations are accounted for applying the
purchase method. Goodwill is not amortized but tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever
there is an indication that the cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated may be impaired.
Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill
is not reversed in a subsequent period.
Where there exists an excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost, all fair values and cost calculations are reassessed. In
the event that an excess still exists, it is immediately recognized in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. An
internally generated intangible asset, arising from the Groups development activities is recognized only if
all of the following conditions are met:
• An asset is created that can be identified;
• It is probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits; and
• The development costs of the assets can be measured reliably.
Internally generated intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful lives. Where
no internally generated asset can be recognized, development cost is recognized as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.
Intellectual property, which comprises patents, licenses and rights is measured internally at purchase cost
and is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life on the following bases:
• Customer relationships: 1-10 years
• In process technology: 3-5 years
• Software & Databases: 3-5 years
• Brands, Licenses, Patents & know how: 5-10 years
Unless it has an indefinite life in which case this fact is disclosed along with the reasons for having an
indefinite life.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recognized at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
loss. Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their useful lives,
using the straight-line method, on the following bases:
• Installation & Machinery: 4-15 years
• Furniture, fixtures & vehicles: 4-5 years
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Leasehold improvements

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the term of the lease, unless a shorter useful life is
expected. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their useful lives on the same bases as
owned assets or, where shorter, over the term of the relevant lease. The gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of raw materials comprises
purchase costs. Raw materials are not ordinarily interchangeable and they are as such accounted for
using the specific identification of their individual cost.
Work in progress and finished goods are valued at the cost of production. The cost of work in progress
comprises the direct cost of materials, direct manufacturing expenses, appropriate allocations of material
and manufacturing overheads, and an appropriate share of the depreciation and write-down of assets
used for production.
Raw materials and supplies are valued using the first in first out method. If the purchase or production
cost is higher than the net realizable value, inventories are written down to the net realizable value. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses.
Small molecule screening libraries are stated at cost on acquisition and written off over their useful
economic lives, calculated by reference to utilization, but which in any event cannot exceed 5 years.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
•

Trade receivables

•

Available for sale financial assets

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value reduced by
appropriate allowances for irrecoverable amounts.
Available for sale investments are stated at fair value, except for those equity instruments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.
Those equity instruments are stated at cost.
Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized directly in equity until the security
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in equity is included in the net profit or loss for the period. Impairment losses recognized
in profit or loss for equity investments classified as available for sale are not subsequently reversed
through profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for debt instruments classified as
available for sale are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the instrument can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition at the impairment loss.

•

Cash and cash equivalents

•

Trade payables

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at nominal value. For the purposes of the
cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held on call with
banks, other short highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts. In the balance sheet, bank
overdrafts are included in borrowings as current liabilities.
Trade payables bear no interest and are measured at their nominal value.
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Taxation

Deferred income tax is provided in full using the “balance sheet liability method”, on temporary
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes.
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets relating to tax losses carried forward are recognized to the extent that it
is probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Foreign currencies
•

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Euros, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

•

Transactions and balances in foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transaction. Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at closing rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the income statement.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost that are denominated in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

•

Financial statements of foreign group companies
The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:
 Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;
 Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rate;
 All resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of equity.

Revenue recognition

The Group generates revenues from the sale of products, providing research and development services,
revenue from target discovery and development activities, license or royalty agreements and from grants.
The revenue recognition policy can be summarized as follows:
• Sales of libraries and reagents are recognized as product revenue when shipped;
• Contract research and development services are recognized as service revenues at fair value as such
services are rendered. These services are usually in the form of a defined number of the Group’s fulltime equivalent (“FTE”) at a specified rate per FTE;
• Research milestone payments are recognized as revenues when earned, unless the Group has
continuing involvement in the program, in which case the milestone revenue is only recognized in full
if amounts earned do not exceed costs incurred.
• Sales from the BioFocus DPI business unit typically comprise multiple elements combined in one or
more license agreements. The elements in such multiple element arrangements are accounted for as
follows:
 Upfront non-refundable license fees are only recognized as revenue at fair value when products
were delivered and/or services were rendered in a separate transaction and the Group has
fulfilled all conditions and obligations under the related agreement. In case of continuing
involvement of the Group, the upfront fee would not be regarded as a separate transaction and
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the upfront non refundable license fees will be deferred at fair value over the period of the
collaboration;
Library and technology access fees are recognized as license revenue over the period in which
access is granted;
Fees charged for library information are recognized as license revenue when delivered, only if the
Group has no continuing involvement in the use of the information, otherwise revenue is
recognized similarly as upfront non-refundable license fees;
Fees for options to negotiate or license are recognized as license revenue at fair value, over the
option period unless the Group has no continuing involvement with the licensed targets, in which
case such fees are recognized as license revenue when earned;
Royalties are recorded as license revenue when earned;
The Group receives operational grants from certain governmental agencies, which support the
Group’s research and development efforts in defined projects. These grants generally aim to
partly reimburse approved expenditures incurred as defined in research and development efforts
of the Group and are credited to the income statement when the relevant expenditure has been
incurred and there is reasonable assurance that the grant is receivable;
Revenues from term licenses are spread over the period to which the licenses relate, reflecting
the obligation over the term, to update content and provide ongoing maintenance;
Revenues from perpetual licenses are recognized immediately upon sale to the extent that there
are no further obligations, and only if the license imposes no time restrictions.
Revenue under compound repository services is recorded as costs are incurred, which includes
indirect costs that are based on provisional rates estimated by management. If actual costs are
subsequently calculated to be greater than provisional rates the additional income is recorded if
there is a contractual right to submit updated claims. A reserve is provided against receivables for
estimated losses that may result from rate negotiations, audit adjustments and/or lack of
government funding availability if it is deemed necessary. To the extent that we incur
adjustments due to rate negotiations or lack of government funding availability, our revenue may
be impacted.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are measured by the fair value of the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Financial risk management

The Group no longer uses derivative financial instruments to hedge foreign currency risks. As a result of
the acquisition of BioFocus in 2005, such instruments were in use, but were not renewed when they
expired in 2006.

Research & development costs

Research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred. The Group capitalizes development
costs as intangible assets only if the criteria for internally generated intangible assets are met, otherwise
such costs are expensed. The Group considers that the regulatory and clinical risks inherent to the
development of clinical targets preclude it from capitalizing the development costs incurred in its drug
development business.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an expense in the income statement
as incurred.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefits plans, the amount recognized in the balance sheet is determined as the present value
of the defined obligations adjusted for the unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and less any past
service costs not yet recognized and the fair value of any plan assets.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when a group company has a present obligation as a result
of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligations and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligations. The
amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of the money and, when appropriate, the risk specified to the liability.

The Group as lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Group at their fair value or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Lease payments are treated
as consisting of capital and interest elements and the interest is charged directly against income so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
also spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from
other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset might be impaired. Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is estimated to be less than the carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at re-valued amount, in which
case the impairment is treated as a revaluation decrease.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as income, unless the relevant asset is
carried at re-valued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment is treated as a revaluation
increase.

21

Net loss per share

Basic net loss per share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted net loss per share, if any, is computed based on the weighted-average number of
shares outstanding including the dilutive effect of warrants.

Share-based payments

The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 share-based payments. In accordance with the
transitional provisions, IFRS 2 has been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002
that were unvested as of 1 January 2005.
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees, directors and consultants.
Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest.
Fair value is measured by use of the Black Scholes model. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restrictions, and behavioral considerations.

Segment reporting

Segment results include revenue and expenses directly attributable to a segment and the relevant portion
of revenue and expenses that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to a segment.
Segment assets and liabilities comprise those operating assets and liabilities that are directly attributable
to the segment or can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis. Segment assets and liabilities
do not include income tax items.

3. Segment reporting
Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is divided into two operating divisions: Drug Discovery and
BioFocus DPI. These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.
Principal activities are as follows:

Drug discovery

The internal drug discovery division has programs in bone and joint diseases - osteoarthritis, osteoporosis
and rheumatoid arthritis and is starting a clinical program in menopausal ‘hot flashes’. Galapagos’ Drug
Discovery division has programs to develop novel drugs based on disease-modifying drug targets in
selected disease areas for which there is a need for safe and effective medicines.

BioFocus DPI

The BioFocus DPI service division offers a full suite of target-to-drug discovery products and services to
pharmaceutical and biotech companies, encompassing target discovery and drug discovery services
through to delivery of pre-clinical candidates. In addition, BioFocus DPI provides adenoviral reagents for
rapid identification and validation of novel drug targets, compound libraries for drug screening as well as
chemogenomics and ADMET database products to select targets and compounds.
All of the Group’s operations are continuing.
Segment information about these businesses for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 31 December
2005 is presented below. No segment information is provided for the year ended 31 December 2004 as
segments were only created part way through 2004 so as to provide separate financial accounting for the
business units Drug Discovery and Galadeno, the former services division prior to the acquisition of
BioFocus DPI.
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2006
Revenue
Thousands of €
External sales
Inter-segment sales
Segment revenue

Drug Discovery

BioFocus DPI

4,202

30,950
3,935
34,885

-3,935
-3,935

35,152

Drug Discovery

BioFocus DPI

Eliminations

Total

-11,590

3,448

4,202

Eliminations

Total
35,152

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates
RESULT
Thousands of €
Segment result
Unallocated expenses
G & A costs
Integration costs
Negative goodwill
Operating loss

-8,142
-5,469
-621
2,425
-11,807

Net finance costs
Loss before taxation
Income tax credit

-687
-12,494
1,159

Net loss for the year

-11,335

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Thousands of €
Total segment assets
Total segment liabilities
OTHER INFORMATION
Thousands of €
Capital additions
- Property, plant and equipment
- Intangible assets
Depreciation
Amortization

Drug Discovery

BioFocus DPI

Eliminations

Total

132,462

44,239

-9,055

167,646

22,090

45,070

-9,055

58,103

Drug Discovery

BioFocus DPI

Eliminations

Total

2,145

2,675
146
2,817
1,108

651
138
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4,820
146
3,468
1,246

2005
Revenue
Thousands of €
External sales
Inter-segment sales
Segment revenue

Drug Discovery

BioFocus DPI

2,120

9,120
262
9,382

-262
-262

Drug Discovery

BioFocus DPI

Eliminations

-6,413

3,581

2,120

Eliminations

Total
11,240
11,240

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates
RESULT
Thousands of €
Segment result
Unallocated expenses
G & A costs
Integration costs
Operating loss

Total
-2,832
-3,537
-281
-6,650

Net finance costs
Loss before taxation
Income tax credit

-1
-6,651
110

Net loss for the year

-6,541

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Thousands of €
Total segment assets
Total segment liabilities
OTHER INFORMATION
Thousands of €
Capital additions
- Property plant and equipment
- Intangible assets
Depreciation
Amortization

Drug Discovery

BioFocus DPI

Eliminations

Total

40,988

42,461

-1,886

81,563

6,764

15,549

-1,886

20,427

Drug Discovery

BioFocus DPI

Eliminations

Total

890
35
460
159

807
15
482
215

1,697
50
942
374

Goodwill created on the acquisition of BioFocus, which was reported in 2005 as unallocated, has been
allocated equally between the BioFocus DPI and Drug Discovery segments, causing a retrospect change in
the disclosure of segment assets. The reason for this is that during 2006 a collaborative research
agreement was signed, in part because of the capabilities of BioFocus. One of the drivers of this
acquisition was to be able to generate such “turn key” deals through the expanded drug discovery
offering of the enlarged Group, but at the date of signing the annual report, it was unclear whether this
would be achieved.
The Group's operations are located in Belgium, The Netherlands, United Kingdom, San Diego, USA, San
Francisco, USA, France, Switzerland and Germany. The Group's Drug Discovery division is located in
Belgium and France and its BioFocus DPI division is located in all other sites.

24

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's sales to external customers by geographical
market, irrespective of the goods and services:
2006
2005
2004
Thousands of €
United Kingdom
5,200
2,082
Europe
8,933
5,010
5,722
United States
19,885
3,845
2,055
Rest of World
1,134
303
Total
35,152
11,240
7,777
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and additions to property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets analyzed by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Thousands of €
United Kingdom
Belgium & The Netherlands
Germany & Switzerland
USA
France
Total

Carrying amount of segment
assets
2006
15,058
5,092
4,304
3,050
16,305
43,809

2005
10,816
3,452

2004

14,268

Additions to property, plant &
equipment and intangible assets
2005
304
1,442

2004

447

2006
1,835
2,602
62
945

447

5,444

1,746

148

148

4. Revenues
Thousands of €
Biology
Chemistry
Discovery Products
Research collaborations & government grants
Total

2006
11,630
8,387
10,019
5,116
35,152

2005
3,669
1,684
3,767
2,120
11,240

2004
5,229
2,548
7,777

Biology consists of FTE services and related access fees and milestones under external service contracts
for the provision of target discovery and drug discovery services.
Chemistry includes FTE services and related access fees under external service contracts as well as the
provision of chemistry based software and research tools under license agreements, which may also
involve ongoing maintenance obligations.
Discovery Products consists of the sale of chemical compound libraries on exclusive and non-exclusive
bases. It also includes the management of compound stores and the procurement of such compounds,
known as “compound repository services”.
Research collaborations include technology access fees, license fees and milestone payments in respect of
out-licensed collaborative research programs.
Government grants are revenue grants received towards the cost of internal research and development
programs. The grants are predominantly for research activities carried out in Belgium and in many cases
carry clauses which require the company to maintain a presence in Belgium or the same region for a
number of years. Failure to do so may result in the repayment of all or part of the grants received.
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5. Operating result

Result from operations has been arrived after charging (-)/crediting:

Cost of sales
Thousands of €
Personnel costs
Disposables and lab fees
Depreciation
Other operating expenses
Total

2006
-8,036
-6,919
-3,180
-1,398
-19,533

2005
-1,914
-1,770
-719
-426
-4,829

2004
-703
-368
-361
144
-1,288

2006
568
2,425
2,993

2005
78

2004

2006
-4,468
-4,753
-377
-4,904
-1,361
-15,863

2005
-4,078
-2,003
-365
-1,780
-674
-8,900

Other income
Thousands of €
Rent receivable
Negative goodwill immediately recognized (note 32)
Total

78

R&D costs
Thousands of €
Personnel costs
Disposables and lab fees
Premises costs
Subcontracting
Depreciation
Total

2004
-3,369
-1,968
-352
-919
-735
-7,343

The method of measuring R&D expenditure was changed in 2006 in order to better reflect the true nature
of the costs involved following the Proskelia acquisition. We now include indirect costs such as premises
costs, support staff and other site related costs. These costs would previously have been shown in G&A.
Therefore, the comparatives for 2005 and 2004 have been updated to reflect these changes. More
specifically, in 2005 total R&D costs were previously disclosed as €6,700,000 and General and
administration costs as €5,737,000. In 2004 R&D costs were originally reported as €5,443,000 and
General and administration costs as €4,520,000.

General and administrative costs
Thousands of €
2006
2005
2004
Personnel costs
-6,642
-1,319
-599
Premises costs
-3,374
-1,023
-328
Professional fees
-693
-81
-205
Director fees
-145
-964
-694
Depreciation
-396
Other operating expenses
-713
-150
-794
Total
-11,963
-3,537
-2,620
Premises costs include rent, service charges, property taxes and utility costs such as light, heat and
water.

Sales and marketing costs
Thousands of €
Personnel costs
Other operating expenses
Total

2006
-1,112
-860
-1,972
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2005
-249
-172
-421

2004
-134
-134

Integration costs
Thousands of €
Severance pay
Other
Total

2006
-621
-621

2005
-281

2004

-281

6. Personnel costs

The number of employees at the end of the year was:
Total

2006
454

2005
201

2004
68

2006
7
247
34
288

2005
4
75
27
106

2004
2
55
22
79

2006
16,205
2,277
1,018
758
20,258

2005
5,165
1,454
256
685
7,560

2004
4,221
796
159
324
5,500

2006
122
248
370

2005
203
165
368

2004
197
5
202

2006
-694
-363
-1,057

2005
-293
-76
-369

2004
-128
-34
-162

The average number of employees during the year was:
Executive Directors
Laboratory staff
G&A staff
Total
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Thousands of €
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs
Other costs
Total

7. Investment revenues
Thousands of €
Interest on bank deposits
Interest on short term deposits
Total
8. Finance costs
Thousands of €
Interest on obligations under finance lease
Other financial costs
Total
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9. Taxes
Thousands of €
Current tax
Foreign tax

2006

2005

2004

110
110

-21
-21

906

Deferred tax (Note 21)
Total

253
1,159

Corporation tax is calculated at 34% (2005: 34%, 2004: 39%) of the estimated assessable profit for the
year.
Tax for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss per the income statement as follows:
Thousands of €
2006 %
2005 %
Loss before tax
-12,494
34
-6,651
34
Total
-4,248
-2,261
Tax result of expenses that are not deductible for tax
Tax effect on non taxable revenues
Unrecognized deferred tax assets on fiscal losses
Tax effect from under or over provisions in statutory tax
change
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in
other jurisdictions
Other increase /(decrease)
Tax credit for the year

-260
-427
2,994

%
34

1,213

479
305
-2
-1,159

Thousands of €
Current income tax net
Current tax expenses
Tax benefit arising from previously unrecognized tax assets used to
reduce current tax of prior period
Adjustments to current tax of prior period

28

2,261

2004
-3,568
-1,213

2006
906
355
72
479

10. Loss per Share

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the net result attributable to shareholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares issued during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by the
Company, held as treasury shares.
Thousands of €
2006
2005
2004
Result for the purpose of basic loss per share, being net loss
-11,335
-6,541
-3,589
Number of shares (thousands)
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of loss
per share
Basic and diluted loss per share (Euros)

13,543

8,936

5,939

-0.84

-0.73

-0.60

The Group had two categories of dilutive potential ordinary shares: warrants and anti-dilution warrants.
The anti-dilution warrants have been cancelled by the Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting held on 29
March 2005, subject to the condition precedent of the realization of the projected public offering. As the
Group is reporting a net loss, the warrants have an anti-dilutive effect rather than a dilutive effect.
Consequently, basic and diluted loss per share are the same.
Under the research collaboration signed with GSK in 2006, shares to the value of €3,174,603 will be
issued upon achievement of a research milestone which would have a dilutive effect. These shares would
be purchased with cash at the prevailing market rate. Therefore the number of shares that would be
issued is unclear.
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11. Goodwill
Goodwill of €7,237,000 acquired through business combinations in 2006 (2005: €29,481,000, 2004 €Nil),
has been allocated to the Drug Discovery and BioFocus DPI cash-generating units (CGUs) for annual
impairment testing. During the year goodwill acquired in 2005 has been reduced to €28,323,000 due to
changes in provisional values brought about by the creation of a deferred tax asset on the opening
balance sheet.
As there were no indicators at the year end that the valuation exercises performed at the time of the
acquisitions in December would no longer be valid, goodwill was not considered to be impaired.
The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding discount rates, growth rates and
expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period. Management estimates discount
rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices
and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in market.
A strategic rationale for the BioFocus acquisition was to enable the Group to secure turn-key deals
involving the capabilities of both former Galapagos and BioFocus. In June 2006 such a collaboration was
signed with GSK. The Group prepares discounted cash flows for the alliance, risk adjusted to address the
probability of success at each milestone. Success at each milestone is based on external industry
benchmarks. Various scenarios are calculated for different outcomes. The rate used to discount the
forecast cash flows is 12.5 per cent. Half of this value is assigned to BioFocus. An alternative approach is
to review the cash generated from the service units activities based on the most recent financial budgets
approved by management for the next three years and extrapolated in perpetuity at zero growth, a
substantial discount to the average expected long-term rate for the relevant markets. The rate used to
discount the forecast cash flows is 10 per cent.

Goodwill

Thousands of €
At 1 January 2004
Acquisitions through business combinations
At 1 January 2005
Acquired through business combinations

29,481

At 1 January 2006
Acquired through business combinations
Changes to provisional values

29,481
7,237
-1,158

Closing balance

35,560
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12. Intangible assets

Thousands of €
Acquisition value
At 1 January 2004
Additions

In process
technology
344
42

263
3

909

1,516
45

386

266

909

1,561

2,591

619

-24

-6

839
35
-8

741
15
-7

4,790
50
-45

2,567

999

1,132

1,658

6,356

401

13,211

5,017

53
-

12
-386

19
386

599
146
18

19,228
146
102

3,021

13,836

6,554

2,421

25,832

95

178
47

603
190

781
332

95
96

225
112

793
43

1,113
374

836
130

1,487
1,246
10

Customer
relationships

At 31 December 2004
Acquisitions through
business combinations
Additions
Translation differences
At 31 December 2005
Acquisitions through
business combinations
Additions
Translation differences
Transfer
At 31 December 2006
Amortization and write-downs
At 1 January 2004
Charge for the year
At 31 December 2004
Charge for the year

Brands,
licenses,
patents &
know-how

Software
&
databases

123

Total

At 31 December 2005
Charge for the year
Impairment
Through business
combinations
Transfer

123
558
10

191
155

337
403

8

3,500
-191

1,737
191

At 31 December 2006

699

3,655

2,668

966

7,988

291

41

116

447

808

795

822

4,869

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2004
At 31 December 2005

2,444

5,245

At 31 December 2006
2,322
10,181
3,887
1,454
17,844
Included within in process technology are research and development programs with indefinite lives that
have a carrying value of €9,711,000 (2005: €Nil, 2004: €Nil). These assets were acquired through
business combinations during the year and will require a number of years of further research and
development before they can be deemed to be in use. The value of these assets was determined by
calculating fair values less costs to sell. This has been achieved by estimating future cash flows which are
probability adjusted using standard industry attrition rates for drug discovery programs and then
discounted at a weighted average cost of capital of 12.5% over time.

31

13. Property, plant and equipment
Thousands of €
Acquisition value
At 1 January 2004
Additions
Disposals

Furniture,
fixtures &
vehicles

Other
tangible
assets

3,347
102
-53

180
1

1,884

5,569
103
-53

158
3

3,396
1,105

181
9

1,884
580

5,619
1,697

454

296

129

-3

5,402
-549
-49

-3

-1

6,281
-549
-56

Land &
buildings

Installation &
machinery

158

At 31 December 2004
Additions
Acquisition through
business combinations
Disposal
Translation difference

Total

At 31 December 2005
Additions
Acquisition through
business combinations
Disposals
Disposals of subsidiaries
Translation differences

612
389

9,305
3,172

483
22

2,592
1,715

12,992
5,298

7,737
4

27,346
-478
-12
68

13
0
0
6

966
0
0
3

36,062
-478
-12
81

At 31 December 2006

8,742

39,401

524

5,276

53,943

28
12

1,722
582
-53

98
33

437
135

2,285
762
-53

40
13

2,251
705
-343

131
52

572
172

2,994
942
-343

53
374

2,613
2,406

183
49

744
639

3,593
3,468

2,196

18,137

1

583

20,917

2,623

23,156

233

1,966

27,978

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2004

118

1,145

50

1,312

2,625

At 31 December 2005

559

6,692

300

1,848

9,399

6,119

16,245

291

3,310

25,965

Depreciation and write-downs
At 1 January 2004
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals
At 31 December 2004
Charge for the year
Elimination on disposals
At 31 December 2005
Charge for the year
Through business
combinations
At 31 December 2006

At 31 December 2006
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14. Inventories
Thousands of €
Raw materials and supplies (net)
Work in progress (net)
Finished goods (net)
Total

2006
377
441
2,681
3,499

2005
483
431
2,228
3,142

2004
98
98

Work in progress consists of the cost of incomplete compound libraries measured at the lower of cost and
net realizable value. Finished goods is the cost of completed compound libraries held for sale at the lower
of cost and net realizable value.
There are no accumulated write-downs on inventories.
15. Financial assets
Available for sale financial assets of €1,001,000 (2005: €978,000, 2004: €Nil) represent an investment in
common stock in an unlisted biotechnology company incorporated in the United States. The shares are
not traded on the open market, however the fair value is based on purchases of the same class of stock
during the year.
Measurement at cost Measurement at fair value
Thousands of €
2006
2005
2006
2005
Loans and receivables
53
Available for sale financial assets
1,001
978
1,001
978
Total
1,054
978
1,054
978

16. Trade and other receivables
Thousands of €
Trade receivables
Allowance for bad debt and doubtful debt
Prepayments
Other receivables
Other income tax receivables
Other current assets
Total
Included in current assets
Included in non-current assets

2006
12,594
-297
1,297
2,588
12,800
2,496
31,478

2005
6,646

2004
1,475

1,780
358
269
1,024
10,077

315
379

24,847
6,631

9,786
291

2,169
2,169

The Group considers that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair
value.

17. Cash and cash equivalents
Thousands of €
Bank balances
Short term deposits
Cash at hand
Total

2006
11,731
39,412
376
51,519

2005
4,672
18,546
399
23,617

2004
1,274
9,000
10,274

The bank balances and cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits have an original maturity of
less than three months. The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value. The cash and
cash equivalents have no restrictions upon them.
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18. Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are cash and bank balances and trade and other receivables, which
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other receivables. The amounts presented
in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the Group’s
management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic environment.
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit rating agencies.
The interest risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rate. The Group chooses to hold cash and cash equivalents in low risk accounts where the priority
is to protect capital whilst earning a reasonable rate of interest. Interest rate swaps are not used. Finance
leases are always on fixed rates of interest.
The Group’s trade credit risk is spread over a limited number of highly credit worthy customers, such as
large pharmaceutical companies. There is no history of losses on doubtful accounts.
19. Share capital
On 1 January 2004, the Company’s share capital was of €32,368,706 represented by 23,754,226 shares
without nominal value (note: the EGM of 29 March 2005 decided to implement a reverse split 1:4 of the
number of shares, so that 23,754,226 pre-reverse split shares equal 5,938,554 post-reverse split shares).
On 31 December 2004, the share capital and the number of shares were unchanged compared to 1
January 2004.
On 29 March 2005, the Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders (“EGM”) decided to increase the
capital of the Company by means of a public offer to private and institutional investors to subscribe to
new shares of the company for a maximum amount of €35,000,000. This EGM also proceeded, subject to
the realization of the company’s initial public offering (“IPO”), i.a. to: (i) a 1:4 reverse share split after
which the share capital of the company remained the same (€32,368,706.00) but was represented by
5,938,554 shares instead of 23,754,226 shares before the reverse share split; (ii) abolish the different
classes of shares; consequently the entire share capital of the company is represented one category of
shares; (iii) record that the exercise term of the anti-dilution warrants issued in 2002 was to expire in
case of an IPO of the company; and (iv) create the Warrant Plan 2005 for employees, directors and
consultants, under which a minimum of 125,000 warrants were created and the maximum to be
determined in accordance with the result of the IPO but not exceeding 500,000.
On 10 May 2005, in execution of the resolutions of the EGM of 29 March 2005, the Board of Directors
established the realization of the condition precedent of the IPO and subsequently established: (i) the
realization of the capital increase with €15,573,143 and the issue of 2,857,142 new shares; (ii) the
exercise of 338,696 warrants (number pre reverse split 1:4) resulting in a capital increase with
€390,010.16 and the issue of an additional 84,674 new shares; (iii) the issue of 467,421 new warrants
within the framework of the Warrant Plan 2005 (none of these warrants have been exercised per 31
December 2006); and (iv) the issue of 963,303 new warrants within the framework of the IPO-Managers’
over-allotment option.
On 8 June 2005, the Board of Directors established the capital increase pursuant to the exercise of
289,795 warrants granted within the framework of the IPO-Managers’ over-allotment option, resulting in a
capital increase with €1,577,354.18.
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On 19 September 2005, the Board of Directors resolved to make a recommended all share offer for the
entire issued and to be issued share capital of BioFocus plc of Saffron Walden, U.K., whereby Galapagos
offered 0.225 Galapagos shares for each BioFocus share. The offer was made on 21 September 2005 and
it was declared unconditional as to acceptances on 12 October 2005 when valid acceptances for 76.9% of
the issued share capital of BioFocus had been received. As of 17 October 2005, the Company’s shares
are also traded on the Alternative Investment Market (AiM) of the London Stock Exchange. On 26
October 2005 valid acceptances of the offer had been received for up to 92.6% of the BioFocus share
capital; consequently, on 8 November 2005, the Board of Directors resolved to start the compulsory
acquisition procedure for the BioFocus shares that were then not yet owned by Galapagos; this procedure
was closed on 29 December 2005. In connection with the acquisition of BioFocus, the following increases
of the share capital of Galapagos NV took place: (i) on 17 October 2005, the share capital was increased
with €15,392,456.80 and 2,824,304 new shares were issued; (ii) on 20 October 2005, the share capital
was increased with €1,205,234.80 and 221,144 new shares were issued; (iii) on 24 October 2005, the
share capital was increased with €160,404.40 and 29,432 new shares were issued; (iv) on 27 October
2005, the share capital was increased with €1,765,859.95 and 324,011 new shares were issued; (v) on 30
November 2005, the share capital was increased with €410,199.70 and 75,266 new shares were issued;
and finally (vi) on 9 January 2006, following the end of the compulsory acquisition procedure, the share
capital was increased with €1,496,891.55 and 274,659 new shares were issued.
On 30 November 2005, a total of 119,200 warrants (number pre reverse split 1:4) were exercised by
employees, i.e. 19,200 warrants under the Warrant Plan 1999 Belgium and 100,000 warrants under the
Warrant Plan 2002 The Netherlands, resulting in a capital increase of €136,200 and the issue of 29,800
new shares.
On 31 December 2005 the share capital of the Company amounted to €68,979,568.99 and was
represented by 12,674,122 shares without nominal value.
On 3 February 2006, within the framework of the authorized capital, the Board of Directors created the
Warrant Plan 2006 Belgium/The Netherlands for employees, directors and consultants, under which
350,000 warrants were created. No warrants have been exercised under this plan per 31 December
2006.
On 23 March 2006, a total of 407,850 warrants were exercised by employees, under the Warrant Plan
2002 Belgium, resulting in a capital increase of €407,850 and the issue of 101,962 new shares.
On 12 May 2006, within the framework of the authorized capital, the Board of Directors created the
Warrant Plan 2006 U.K., substantially for U.K. based employees of Galapagos, under which 453,715
warrants were created. No warrants have been exercised under this plan per 31 December 2006.
On 19 September 2006, within the framework of the authorized capital, the Board of Directors decided to
increase the share capital of the company with €7,087,856.89 (plus €4,005,273.11 in issuance premium)
by means of a private placement, wholly subscribed by Fortis Bank NV (Belgium), resulting in the issuance
of 1,305,074 new shares.
In December 2006, Galapagos acquired Inpharmatica Limited. The acquisition price of Inpharmatica
consisted out of three components: the ongoing business was valued at €6.5 million, the estimated cash
at an additional €6 million and the potential maximum earn-out related to commercial milestones at €6.6
million. Galapagos would issue the new shares, on the basis of €8.82 per share (the average share price
of Galapagos over the last thirty days prior to 5 December 2006). On 8 December 2006, as consideration
for this acquisition of Inpharmatica Limited and within the framework of the authorized capital, the Board
of Directors decided to increase the capital of the company by the issuance of maximum 2,165,532 new
shares under the suspending condition of the actual contribution in kind to Galapagos’ assets of
41,487,248 “C Preference” shares of Inpharmatica Limited as well as under certain other suspending
conditions. On the same day, the Board of Directors established that 31,033,843 of such Inpharmatica “C
Preference” shares were actually contributed in kind and in consideration therefore resolved to increase
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the share capital of Galapagos with €2,537,433.60 (plus €1,576,567.20 in issuance premium) and to issue
466,440 new shares to the relevant contributing Inpharmatica shareholders. The second tranche of
shares is expected to be issued in April 2007. The third tranche of shares is expected to be issued in May
2007. The exact number of shares to be issued in these two tranches at each time will depend upon
certain confidential contractual provisions that have been set forth in the Inpharmatica acquisition
agreement. The maximum number of shares that still can be issued in the second and the third tranche is
1.699.092.
On 21 December 2006, the Board of Directors established that the remaining 10,453,405 of the
aforementioned Inpharmatica “C Preference” shares were actually contributed in kind and in consideration
therefore resolved to increase the share capital of Galapagos with €854,852.48 (plus €531,139.96 in
issuance premium) and to issue 157,142 new shares to the relevant contributing Inpharmatica
shareholders.
On 21 December 2006, a total of 46,400 warrants were exercised by employees, as follows: (i) 4,800
warrants under the Warrant Plan 1999 Belgium and 11,600 warrants under the Warrant Plan 2002
Belgium, with exercise price of €1.00 per warrant; and (ii) 30,000 warrants under the Warrant Plan 2002
The Netherlands, with exercise price of €1.17 per warrant. This exercise of warrants resulted in a capital
increase of €51,500.00 and the issue of 11,600 new shares.
On 22 December 2006, within the framework of the authorized capital and in conjunction with the
acquisition of ProSkelia SASU, the Board of Directors decided to increase the share capital of the company
with €18,842,457 (plus €12,157,543 in issuance premium) through a private placement of new shares
with institutional investors in the US and Europe, resulting in the issuance of 3,463,683 new shares.
On 22 December 2006, within the framework of the authorized capital, the Board of Directors decided: (i)
to increase the capital of the company by the issuance to ProSkelia B.V. of 1,396,648 new shares in
consideration for the contribution in kind to Galapagos’ assets by ProSkelia B.V. of 100% of the shares of
ProSkelia SASU, and consequently (ii) to increase the share capital of the company with €7,597,765 (plus
€4,902,235 in issuance premium).
On 31 December 2006, the company’s share capital was of €107,856,175.51, represented by 19,851,330
shares without nominal value. All shares are issued and fully paid and are of the same class.
The evolution of share capital and number of shares outstanding, as described above, is summarized in
the table below. Note that the amounts of share capital increase as set forth below do not include the
issuance premiums that are paid in certain circumstances, which are booked on a separate unavailable
account and are not part of the share capital stricto sensu.
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History of Share Capital

Date

Share Capital
Increase
New shares
(in €)

Share Capital
Increase
Warrants
(in €)

Aggregate
Number of
shares after
transaction

Aggregate
Share Capital
after transaction
(in €)

15,573,143.00

390,010.16

8,880,370

48,331,859.16

1,577,354.18

9,170,165

49,909,213.34

10-May-05
08-Jun-05
17-Oct-05

15,392,456.80

11,994,469

65,301,670.14

20-Oct-05

1,205,234.80

12,215,613

66,506,904.94

24-Oct-05

160,404.40

12,245,045

66,667,309.34

27-Oct-05

1,765,859.95

12,569,056

68,433,169.29

30-Nov-05

410,199.70

12,674,122

68,979,568.99

09-Jan-06

1,496,891.55

12,948,781

70,476,460.54

13,050,743

70,884,310.54

136,200.00

407,850.00

23-Mar-06
19-Sep-06

7,087,856.89

14,355,817

77,972,167.43

08-Dec-06

2,537,433.60

14,822,257

80,509,601.03

21-Dec-06

854,852.48

14,979,399

81,364,453.51

21-Dec-06

51,500.00

14,990,999

81,415,953.51

22-Dec-06

26,440,222

19,851,330

107,856,175.51

Other information
Par value of shares
Movement in number of number of shares
1 January 2004
31 December 2004
Reverse Split 4:1
Number of shares issued
BioFocus acquisition
31 December 2005
Number of shares issued
31 December 2006

Ordinary shares

Total

5.43

5.43
23,754,226
23,754,226
5,938,554
3,261,411
3,474,957
12,674,122
7,177,208
19,851,330
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20. Derivative financial instruments

Currency derivatives

The Group utilizes currency derivatives to hedge budgeted future cash flows. The foreign currency
forward contracts are denominated in the currencies of the Group’s principle markets.
At the balance sheet date, total notional amount of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts that
the Group has committed are €Nil (2005: €4,800,000, 2004 €Nil) and all due within 1 year.
At 31 December 2006 the fair value of the Group’s currency derivatives is estimated to be €Nil (2005:
€394,000, 2004 €Nil).
Changes in the value of non-hedging currency derivatives amounting to €394,000 have been
credited/(charged) to cost of sales during the year (2005: (€230,000), 2004: €Nil).
The Group does not designate its foreign currency denominated debt as a hedge instrument for the
purpose of hedging the translation of its foreign operations.
The group incurs foreign currency risk on receivables, payables and borrowings that are denominated in a
currency other than the company’s functional currency. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily Pounds Sterling, US Dollars and Swiss Francs.
21. Deferred tax
Thousands of €
I

II

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Assets
Liabilities
Deferred tax assets unrecognised

2006

2005

2004

727
-594

-1,542

-225

46,013

III Income tax expenses
253
Deferred tax expenses net relating to origination and
reversal of temporary differences
253
The unused tax losses carried forward at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 amount to €141,187,000,
€53,500,000 and €22,083,000 respectively.
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22. Finance lease liabilities
Minimum lease payments
Thousands of €
Amounts payable under finance
lease
Within one year
In the second to fifth year
After five years
Less future finance charges
Present value of lease
obligations
Less amount due for settlement
within 12 months
Amount due for settlement
after 12 months

Leased assets
Land & buildings
Installation & machinery
Furniture, fixture vehicles
Other tangible assets
Total

2006

2005

2004

3,832
4,653
1,180
9,665
1,898

3,889
4,498
1,104
9,491
1,918

226
903
1,072
2,201
682

7,767

7,573

1,519

Net book value
2006
2005
4,309
3,763
152
92
8,316

4,317
2,005
147
6,469

Present value of
minimum lease payments
2006
2005
2004
3,172
4,038
557
7,767

2,967
4,606
958
7,573

106
523
890
1,519

3,172

2,967

106

4,595

4,606

1,413

Acquisition cost
2006
2005
2004

2004
1,516

1,516

6,563
6,141
180
179
13,063

6,344
3,520
179
10,043

1,884

1,884

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its installation and machinery under finance leases. For the year
ended 31 December 2006, the average borrowing rate was 11% (2005: 9%, 2004: 8.25%). The interest
rates were fixed at the date of the contracts. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments.
The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations approximates their carrying value.

23. Operating lease obligations
The Group as lessee

The Group has rental contracts for office and laboratories which qualify as operating leases as follows:
Thousands of €
Minimum lease payments under operating leases
recognized in income for the year
Total

2006

2005

2004

1,536
1,536

1,433
1,433

476
476

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum rent payments,
which fall due as follows:
Thousands of €
Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
After five years
Total

2006
4,792
3,830
8,622
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2005
1,979
3,955
910
6,844

2004
419
668
834
1,921

The Group as lessor

The Group holds surplus office and manufacturing buildings, which following the consolidation of sites in
2005 are sublet to third parties under non-cancelable operating leases in order to cover costs. Future
minimum rentals receivable under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:
Thousands of €
Within one year
In the second and fifth years inclusive
Total
24. Trade and other payables
Thousands of €
Trade payables
Other creditors
Accruals
Deferred income
Total
Included in current liabilities
Included in non-current liabilities

2006
1,537
1,153
2,690

2005
368
607
975

2004

2006
11,805
643
5,820
7,806
26,074
25,431
643

2005
4,064
552
862
4,304
9,782
9,568
214

2004
836
166
814
950
2,766
2,766

25. Provisions
Thousands of €
At 1 January 2006
Additional provisions
Provisions – unused amounts
reversed
Changes in consolidation scope
including earn-out
Translation differences
increase
At 31 December 2006

Provisions for
litigation

Restructuring
provision

151

70

151

70

Included in current liabilities
Included in non - current
liabilities

Provisions /
Other

Total

591
-72

591
-72

21,904

22,125

1

1

22,424

22,645
22,089
556

A provision of €21,904,000 included in the changes in consolidation scope relates to the potential earn out
payments based on milestones agreed during the acquisitions of Inpharmatica and ProSkelia.
Additional provisions includes €526,000 related to onerous rental contracts.
Upon achievement of certain conditions and milestones related to the acquisitions of Inpharmatica and
ProSkelia, earn-out fees will be payable. The achievement of these conditions and milestones would also
generate positive cash flows for the Group, but they are not likely enough to be disclosed as contingent
assets.
26. Contingent Liabilities and Assets
See note 25 for a description of assets and liabilities acquired through business combinations which were
considered for but not presented as contingent.
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27. Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates defined contribution systems for all of its qualifying employees. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in designated funds.
Defined benefit scheme
Thousands of €
Defined benefit plan obligation (asset) total
Liabilities

2006

2005

2004

905

Acquired through business combinations
Present value of the defined benefit plan obligation ending
balance
Principal actuarial assumptions
Discount rate used
Expected rate of salary increase

905
905
4.25%
2.50%

The regular contributions constitute an expense for the Group of €Nil (2005: €Nil, 2004: €Nil)
The total of €905,000 consists of €465,000 pensions and €440,000 as seniority bonuses.
Group companies operate two defined benefit pension schemes. The schemes are unfunded and the
obligations are determined by annual actuarial calculations. The schemes are mandatory under the French
Chemical and Pharmaceutical industries Collective agreements and require the company to pay retirement
lump-sum amounts depending on the employers seniority as and when they retire from the company with
full pension as defined by the French Social Security system.
Defined contribution scheme
In the case of defined contribution plans, Galapagos Group companies pay contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension funds on insurance contracts. Once the contributions have been paid, the
Group companies have no further payment obligations.
For the defined contribution scheme the total expense for 2006 for the Group amounts to €1,018,000
(2005: €355,000, 2004: €159,000). At 31 December 2006 contributions due to the schemes totaled
€219,000 (2005: €50,000, 2004: €Nil).
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28. Warrant plans
Presented below is a summary of stock warrant plans activity for the reported periods. After the reverse
4:1 share split decided by the Shareholders’ Meeting of 29 March 2006, 4 warrants of the 1999 and 2002
plans will entitle the warrant holder to subscribe to one share. One warrant of the new warrant plans
created as of 2005 onwards will entitle the warrant holder to subscribe to one share. In the summaries
and tables below, the numbers of the warrant plans 1999 and 2002 are divided by 4 to avoid a mixture of
rights.
Warrant plans 1999

Warrant plan Belgium 1999

Pursuant to the Warrant Plan Belgium 1999, a total number of 137,335 warrants were issued to and
subscribed by Galapagos NV. At 31 December 2006, an aggregate number of 60,539 warrants were
granted to directors, management and personnel of Galapagos NV, of which 39,239 warrants are still
outstanding. No further warrants can be granted under this plan. The number of warrants outstanding
under this plan was of 54,389 per 31 December 2004 and of 40,439 per 31 December 2005. The warrants
have a term of eight years. The warrants can be exercised at the latest on 15 December 2009. Each
vested warrant entitles the warrant holder to subscribe for one Share. The exercise price of the warrants
is the highest of either €4 or the price against which the most recent capital increase occurred prior to the
date of the offer of the warrants. The warrants vest according to the following scheme: 10% of the
number of warrants granted vests upon the date of the grant; 20% vests at the first anniversary of the
grant; 40% vests at the second anniversary of the grant; 60% vests at the third anniversary; 100% vests
at the end of the third calendar year following the grant.

Warrant plan The Netherlands 1999

At31 December 2006 and 31 December 2005 no more warrants are outstanding under the Warrant Plan
Netherlands 1999, i.e. no warrants were available for granting and no warrants can be exercised
anymore.
Warrant plans 2002
At the Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting of 1 March 2002, one warrant plan was approved in favor of
the management and personnel of Galapagos NV ("Warrant Plan Belgium 2002") and a second warrant
plan in favor of management and personnel of Galapagos NV’s subsidiary ("Warrant Plan The Netherlands
2002").

Warrant plan Belgium 2002

Pursuant to the Warrant Plan Belgium 2002, a total number of 753,250 warrants were created. At 31
December 2006, an aggregate number of 793,705 (see below) warrants were allotted to directors,
management and personnel of Galapagos NV, of which 522,900 warrants are still outstanding at 31
December 2006 and 18,775 warrants remained available for distribution. The number of warrants
outstanding under this plan was of 519,412 per 31 December 2004 and of 627,762 per 31 December
2005. The warrants have a term of eight years. The warrants can be exercised at the latest on 1
February 2012. According to the original provisions of the Warrant Plan Belgium 2002, each vested
warrant entitled the warrant holder to subscribe for one share. The vesting scheme is identical as in
Warrant Plan Belgium 1999.
The Board of Directors determines the exercise price of the warrants at the moment the warrants are
offered to a beneficiary, in accordance with the specific exercise price provisions in the Warrant Plan
Belgium 2002. The Warrant Plan Belgium 2002 provides that the exercise price of the warrants is to be
determined by an auditor and at least equal to €1.00, provided that, if the Galapagos NV’s shares are
listed or traded on a stock market, the Board of Directors may choose whether the exercise price equals
at least (a) the closing price of the last day preceding the date of the offer, or (b) the average of the price
per share, as listed on the stock market, of the last thirty days, or any other relevant period, preceding
the date on which the warrants are offered. As no warrants have been granted under this plan after the
IPO, all warrants granted under this plan have an exercise price of €4.00 per warrant (post-reverse split
1:4 of the Company’s shares) as determined in accordance with the terms of the plan.
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Under the Warrant Plan Belgium 2002, a total of 753,250 warrants (recalculated after reverse share split
1:4) were created. Warrants were granted under this plan as follows: (i) in 2002: 565,831 warrants; (ii)
in 2003: 27,750 warrants; (iii) in 2004: 40,750 warrants; and (iv) in 2005; 159,375 warrants. By a
decision of the Board of Directors of 15 January 2004 in connection with the departure of Dr. R. Brown
(CSO) at that time) it was resolved that 59,231 warrants out of the package granted to Dr. Brown, which
number of warrants would become void (not vested) as a result of his departure, would not so become
void upon his departure per 1 April 2004 but would remain in existence and return to the company to
enable the company to grant these warrants to one or more future employees or directors. When adding
up all grants under the Warrant Plan Belgium 2002, a total of 793,706 warrants have been granted, but
in this total number the 59,231 warrants referred here before are double-counted. The number of
warrants actually granted under said plan is therefore 734,475.

Warrant plan The Netherlands 2002

Pursuant to the Warrant Plan Netherlands 2002, a total number of 125,000 warrants were created. At 31
December 2006, the Company has allotted an aggregate number of 120,649 warrants pursuant to this
Warrant Plan Netherlands 2002, of which 12,687 warrants were outstanding at 31 December 2006 and
4,351 warrants remained available for distribution. The number of warrants outstanding under this plan
was of 120,649 per 31 December 2004 and of 20,187 per 31 December 2005. The exercise period of the
warrants amounts to four years, which exercise period starts as from the date of offer. The warrants can
be exercised at the latest on 1 February 2012. A vested warrant entitled the holder of such warrant to
subscribe for one share of Galapagos NV. The vesting scheme is comparable as in the Warrant plan
Belgium 1999, with the exception that as a consequence of the IPO all warrants became fully vested.
In respect of warrants that have been granted prior to the date of listing of Galapagos NV’s shares, the
exercise price of such warrants amount to the higher of either €4.68 or the market value of Galapagos
NV’s share Class D as determined by the Board of Directors (Note: at the occasion of the Company’s IPO
in May 2005, the different classes of shares have been abolished so that as of the IPO all shares are of
one and the same class). The Warrant Plan the Netherlands 2002 further provides that, once Galapagos
NV’s shares are listed, the exercise price of any warrants will equal, at the discretion of the Board of
Directors, either the closing price of Galapagos NV’s shares on the trading day preceding the day on
which the warrants were granted, the average share price of the preceding 30 day period, or any other
relevant period.

Warrant plan Belgium 2005

Pursuant to the Warrant Plan Belgium 2005, a total number of 467,421 warrants were created (notary
deed of 29 March 2005). At 31 December 2006, an aggregate number of 458,600 warrants were allotted
to directors and employees of the Group, all of which were still outstanding at 31 December 2006, and
8,821 warrants remained available for distribution. The number of warrants outstanding under this plan
was of 282,500 per 31 December 2005. The warrants have a term of eight years. The warrants can be
exercised at the latest on 29 March 2015. According to the original provisions of the Warrant Plan
Belgium 2005, each vested warrant entitled the warrant holder to subscribe for one share. The vesting
scheme is identical as in the Warrant plan Belgium 1999, except that for directors the warrants vest linear
over a 36 months period at 1/36 per month.
The exercise price of the warrants will be decided as at least (a) the closing price of the last day
preceding the date of the offer, or (b) the average of the price per share, as listed on the stock market, of
the last thirty days, or any other relevant period, proceeding the date on which the warrants are offered.
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WARRANT PLANS 2006
Warrant Plan 2006 Belgium/The Netherlands

Pursuant to the Warrant Plan 2006 Belgium/The Netherlands, a total number of 350,000 warrants were
created (notary deed 3 February 2006). At 31 December 2006, an aggregate number of 200,043
warrants were allotted to directors and employees of the Group of which 194,395 warrants were still
outstanding at 31 December 2006 (5,648 of the allotted warrants became void in 2006), and 149,957
warrants remained available for distribution. The warrants have a term of eight years. The warrants
created under this Plan can be exercised at the latest on 2 February 2016 (i.e. 10 years after the date of
creation of the Plan). According to the provisions of the Warrant Plan 2006 Belgium/The Netherlands,
each vested warrant entitled the warrant holder to subscribe for one share. The vesting scheme is
identical as in the Warrant plan 2005.
The exercise price of the warrants will be decided by the Board as at least (a) the closing price of the last
trading day preceding the date of the offer, or (b) the average of the closing price per share, as quoted
on the stock market, of the last thirty days proceeding the date on which the warrants are offered.

Warrant Plan 2006 U.K.

Pursuant to the Warrant Plan 2006 U.K., a total number of 453,715 warrants were created (notary deed
12 May 2006). At 31 December 2006, an aggregate number of 393,856 warrants were allotted to
employees of the Group, of which 384,833 warrants were still outstanding at 31 December 2006 (9,023 of
the allotted warrants became void in 2006) and 59,859 warrants remained available for distribution. The
warrants have a term of eight years. The warrants can be exercised at the latest on 11 May 2016 (i.e. 10
years after the date of creation of the Plan). According to the provisions of the Warrant Plan 2006 U.K.,
each vested warrant entitled the warrant holder to subscribe for one share. The vesting scheme is
identical as in the Warrant plan 2005.
The exercise price of the warrants will be decided by the Board as at least (a) the closing price of the last
trading day preceding the date of the offer, or (b) the average of the closing price per share, as quoted
on the stock market, of the last five trading days preceding the date on which the warrants are offered.
The number of outstanding warrants (including warrants still available for distribution) as a percentage of
outstanding shares as per 31 December 2006 was 9.34% and as per 31 December 2005 was 9.30%.
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Warrants
730,630
176,537

Weighted average
exercise price
4.11
4.46

40,750
-76,306

4.00
4.00

-1,500

4.00

Outstanding at 31 December 2004
Exercisable at 31 December 2004

693,574
175,037

4.12
4.47

Granted during the period
Forfeited during the period
Exercised during the period
Expired during the period

441,875
-52,563
-114,474

7.34
5.53
4.60

Outstanding at 31 December 2005
Exercisable at 31 December 2005

968,412
349,930

5.50
4.04

Granted during the period
Forfeited during the period
Exercised during the period
Expired during the period

769,999
-14,671
-113,562

8.72
8.67
4.04

1,610,178
391,513

7.11
4.29

Outstanding at 1 January 2004
Exercisable at 1 January 2004
Granted during the period
Forfeited during the period
Exercised during the period
Expired during the period

Outstanding at 31 December 2006
Exercisable at 31 December 2006

(1) A correction to the above table needed to be made for the warrants granted in 2005, where
the number "granted during the period" as reported for 2005 was of 456,875, by material error including
15,000 warrants that had not been accepted but refused in 2005 by one beneficiary. The table above is
corrected and the number of warrants "granted during the period" in 2005 is reduced to 441,875. This
correction induced also a correction in the number of warrants "outstanding at 31 December 2005" that
was reported for 2005 to be of 983,412 and in the above table corrected to 968,412 (i.e. minus 15,000).
(2) Part of the warrants offered in 2006 were subject to a 60-days acceptance period that ran into 2007.
In the above table, all warrants offered in 2006 that subsequently have been accepted by the
beneficiaries (even if such acceptance occurred in 2007), have been included in the section "granted
during the period".
The table below sets forth the valuation of the warrants.
Belgian Plans

Exercise Price
Current share price
Estimated volatility
Time to expiration
(years)
Risk free rate
Expected dividends
Dutch Plan

2003

2004

4.00
4.00
29%
3.40

4.00
4.00
30%
3.90

2005
31
Jan
6.76
7.50
31%
3.50

4.10%
None
2002

4.31%
None

3.64%
None

4
Jul
6.91
7.15
30%
3.50

23
Nov
8.35
8.25
30%
4.00

15
Dec
8.60
9.20
30%
4.00

2006
13
Feb
8.61
8.72
30%
4.00

13
Feb
8.73
8.72
30%
4.00

22
Nov
8.65
8.92
30%
4.00

3.75%
None

3.75%
None

3.75%
None

4.00%
None

4.00%
None

4.00%
None
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Exercise Price
Current share price
Estimated volatility
Time to expiration
(years)
Risk free rate
Expected dividends

4.68
4.00
31%
2.00

UK plan

2006
17 June

22 Nov

19 Dec

8.70
8.37
30%
4.00

8.65
8.70
30%
4.00

9.18
9.06
30%
4.00

4.00%
none

4.00%
none

4.00%
none

Exercise Price
Current share price
Estimated volatility
Time to expiration
(years)
Risk free rate
Expected dividends

3.55%
None

The method of determining the exercise share price is set up by the Board of Directors.
The estimated volatility is calculated based on historical volatility of the share price over the lifetime of the
warrants.
The time to expiration of the warrant is calculated as the estimated duration until exercise, taking into
account the specific features of the plans.
The warrants have been accounted for in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard 2 on
Share Based Payments. IFRS 2 takes effect for all warrants offered after 7 November 2002. In 2002, no
warrants offered under any of the plans, qualify for accounting under IFRS 2. Under the Dutch plan, no
warrants have been offered in 2004. For these periods, no fair value calculation has as such been
performed.
The weighted average fair market value of the warrants granted during 2005 and 2004 was €235,000 and
€5,000 respectively. These were recorded in debit of the share capital.
The following table provides an overview of the outstanding warrants per personnel category at 31
December 2006.
Category

Number of warrants
2006
2005
2004
Non-executive Directors
109,750
56,250
46,250
Executive Team
764,726
684,726
342,226
Other
735,702
227,436
305,098
Total Warrants outstanding
1,610,178
968,412
693,574
Note: The above numbers for the non-executive directors and members of the executive team, for the
years 2004 and 2005, relate only to those individuals that were (still) in such capacity per 31 December
2006.
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29. Related parties
Transactions between Galapagos NV, Galapagos Genomics BV, BioFocus DPI, Inpharmatica and ProSkelia,
which are related parties, have been eliminated in consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.
Transactions between the Group and its associates are disclosed below.

Trading transactions

During the year 2005 and 2004 the Group entered into the following transactions with related parties,
who are not part of the Group.
Thousands of €
Sales of goods
Purchases of goods and services
2006
2005
2004
2006
2005
2004
Crucell BV
265
328
Tibotec NV and associates
5
82
Johnson & Johnson Group
2
311
Johnson & Johnson is a related party through its parent-subsidiary relationship with Tibotec NV. The
sales to Johnson & Johnson relate to sales transactions in the normal course of business.
Both Crucell BV and Tibotec NV are the founding shareholders of the Group. The purchases performed by
the Group with Crucell BV comprise:
Thousands of €
2006
2005
2004
Office rent and rent charges
277
271
138
Laboratory maintenance
105
53
Lab disposables
4
52
52
Other
-163
85
Total
281
265
328
At 31 December the following amounts with related parties were still outstanding in the balance sheet:
Thousands of €
Amounts owed by related
Amounts owed to related
parties
parties
2006
2005
2004
2006
2005
2004
Crucell BV
5
96
Tibotec NV and associates
5
8
7
Johnson & Johnson Group
The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or
received. No provisions have been made for doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related
parties.
Transactions with related companies are mainly trade transactions and are priced at arms length. The
revenue and expenses to these transactions are immaterial to the consolidated financial statement.

Other contracts with related parties:

Non-compete undertaking from Crucell: Galapagos NV and Crucell agreed that Crucell shall refrain from
activities in the field of functional genomics, except if a third party who is engaged in the field of
functional genomics acquires direct or indirect control of Crucell. This non-compete obligation applies to
Crucell until 31 March 2008. The non-compete obligation applies for the geographic areas of Asia, Europe
and the US. No consideration was paid for this undertaking.
License Agreement between Tibotec and Galapagos NV dated 28 May 2001: Galapagos NV, Tibotec and
Crucell entered into a license agreement dated 15 September 1999. The parties agreed to terminate this
agreement and enter into separate new license agreements. Galapagos NV entered into the license
agreement dated 28 May 2001 under which Tibotec granted a non-exclusive worldwide royalty-free
license under the Tibotec Intellectual Property relating to, inter alia, a method for the rapid screening of
analyses, means and methods for drug discovery and the phenotypic characterization of cells, and
methods for assaying high specific protease activity. The term of this agreement is the latter of (i) the
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term of the Tibotec patents or (ii) 6 March 2017. The Group paid a consideration of €454,000 for this
agreement which was capitalized.
Research and Commercial License Agreement between Crucell and Galapagos NV dated 6 June 2001:
Under this agreement Crucell granted a sole and exclusive worldwide license to Galapagos NV under the
Crucell patents and know how for, inter alia, identifying, making and using products and services in the
field of identification and/or validation of the biological functions of human and non-human genes, and/or
genes (fragments) of proteins and/or fragments of proteins transcribed from such genes. The term of
this agreement is the latter of (i) the term of the Crucell patents or (ii) 6 March 2017. The Group paid a
consideration of €454,000 for this agreement which was capitalized.
Services Agreement for alteration works to be performed in the laboratories of Galapagos Genomics BV by
Facility Services Crucell Holland BV entered into between Crucell and Galapagos Genomics BV dated 3
November 2004: Under this agreement Crucell agreed to make amendments to the leased property for
the benefit of Galapagos Genomics BV. The costs (estimated at €39,750) shall be borne by Galapagos
Genomics BV. After termination of the lease Galapagos Genomics BV must reimburse €5,000 to Crucell
for restoration efforts.
Services Agreement between Crucell an Galapagos Genomics BV dated 15 August 2002, supplemented by
an agreement dated 5 March 2004: In addition to the lease of the property occupied by Galapagos
Genomics BV, Crucell agreed that Galapagos Genomics BV may use certain facilities of Crucell described in
the agreement (including company restaurant, laboratory facilities, the library, meeting rooms and require
assistance of the technical services department) at specified rates.
Supplemental Agreement to the Ratification Agreement for the Lease of Office and Laboratory Facilities
between Crucell and Galapagos Genomics BV dated 1 November 2004 and amended 7 March 2005: This
agreement documents new conditions for the termination of the lease agreement as set out in the
Ratification Agreement. Under the Supplemental Agreement, the lease may be terminated subject to a
six month written notice, starting from 31 March 2007.
Prior to the IPO, independent directors received Board Meeting fees amounting to €1,500 per Board
Meeting. As of the IPO, independent directors receive an annual fee of €20,000.
As of 1 August 2005, the Chairman of the Board, Dr Parekh receives an annual consulting fee of £50,000
as a compensation for giving strategic advice, including amongst others the evaluation of several
alternative corporate transactions, the acquisition of the assets of Discovery Partners International, the
acquisitions of Inpharmatica and ProSkelia as well as the two private placements that took place in 2006.
Dr. Parekh does not receive other compensation from the company.
There are no loans between Galapagos NV and its members of the Board of Directors or its Executive
Team, other than for prefinancing of withholding taxes for an amount of €33,000.

Potential conflicts of interest between the Company and its Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2006, a number of situations occurred where a potential
conflict of interest between the Company and a member of a governance body of the
Company existed. They are described hereafter.
In connection with the acquisition of Inpharmatica Ltd by Galapagos in December 2006: among the
shareholders of Inpharmatica were a number of venture capital investment funds belonging to the Advent
Venture Partners group (London, UK). As Dr. Parekh was a General Partner with a venture capitalist
organization that was a minority shareholder of Inpharmatica Limited, Dr. Parekh has not participated in
the deliberations and votes that took place in the Board in connection with the acquisition of
Inpharmatica, in accordance with article 523 BCC. The rationale for and the financial implications of the
transaction were explained in a special report of the Board per article 602 of the BCC and can be
summarized as follows: The Company acquired Inpharmatica in the context of its strategy to build a
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worldwide leading position in drug discovery services; the acquisition will contribute to the Company’s
capability to enter into turn-key drug discovery alliances with pharmaceutical and biotechnology
companies, as well as to support its own internal drug discovery pipeline. The Company will, based on a
share price of €8.82 (the 30 day average of the Company’s share closing price up to 5 December 2006)
issue a maximum of 2,165,582 new shares, i.e. a maximum capital increase with €19,099,992.24
(including issuance premium). The exact number of shares to be allotted to Inpharmatica shareholders
will depend on the achievement of certain conditions (including the cash balance of Inpharmatica) agreed
upon in the acquisition agreement. The shares will be issued in 3 tranches. A first tranche of 623,582
shares has been allotted on 8 December and 21 December 2006; the next two tranches will be calculated
and allotted in April and May 2007.
In connection with the acquisition of ProSkelia SASU by Galapagos in December 2006. As Dr Wilson
Totten, a member of the Board of Galapagos, was also CEO of ProStrakan Group plc, the ultimate parent
company of ProSkelia SASU, Dr. Totten did at no point in time participate in the Board’s deliberations and
votes relating to this acquisition project, in accordance with article 523 BCC. The rationale for and the
financial implications of the transaction were explained in a special report of the Board per article 602 of
the BCC and can be summarized as follows: With its programs in rheumatoid arthritis, its GSK alliance in
osteoarthritis, and the acquisition of the ProSkelia programs, the Company is becoming a leader in the
discovery and development of small molecule drugs to treat bone and joint diseases. With the licensing
of ProStrakan’s E2G program, the Company will be able to execute a phase IIb trial and build the
necessary infrastructure to progress its other products into and through clinical testing. Additionally, the
Company expands its collaborations with leading pharma and biotech companies, while operating a fast
growing business unit in drug discovery services. The acquisition price of ProSkelia comprises €12.5
million (including issuance premium) in newly issued Galapagos shares (1,396,648 shares) on the basis of
€8.95 per share (the average Galapagos share price over the last thirty days prior to 22 December 2006
as quoted on Euronext Amsterdam). This price is partially offset by estimated cash tax refunds of €9
million over the coming four years. In addition, ProStrakan will be eligible for earn-out payments capped
at €14.5 million, as part of future income that the Company will derive from the acquired pre-clinical
programs. For the license on E2G, ProStrakan will receive €5 million plus a fixed amount of licensing
revenues receivable by Galapagos, as well as single digit royalties. These payments to ProStrakan for the
E2G program are conditional to successful completion of Phase IIb clinical trials and partnering of the
product. In addition, ProStrakan has right of first refusal on the cachexia program, should the Company
decide to partner or out-license this.
In connection with the approval by the Board of 12 December 2006 of a €10,000 compensation for Dr
David Stone in connection with his stepping down from the Board two years before the end of his
mandate, Dr Stone did not participate in the deliberation and the vote, in application of article 523 BCC.
In connection with the decision of the Board of 12 December 2006 to harmonize the vesting structure of
the warrants, granted to Directors under the 2002 Warrant Plan to make all vesting linear over a vesting
period of 36 months and thus bringing it in line with the 36-months vesting mechanism for Directors as
set forth in the 2005 Warrant Plan and the Warrant Plan 2006 Belgium/The Netherlands, the Directors
involved (Dr Parekh, Mr Verdonck, Dr Totten and Dr Ross) did not participate in the deliberation and vote
insofar as they were affected (Dr Totten did not attend the meeting), in application of article 523 BCC.
The linear vesting over 36 months will have an immaterial impact on the financial position of the
company.
In connection with the Board decision of 12 December 2006 establishing a Management Bonus Plan, the
procedure of article 523 BCC has been followed by and relating to the CEO, Mr van de Stolpe: it has been
explained to the Board that such Management Bonus Plan is proposed upon recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee and is a justified reward for the results achieved by the company’s management
group. The bonus awards (if any) under this Management Bonus Plan will have no material impact on the
financial position of the company. The Board shares the opinion of the Remuneration Committee that the
proposed Management Bonus Plan is justified and reasonable. Mr van de Stolpe, the Company’s CEO,
who will be eligible for bonus awards under said plan, has not taken part in the deliberation and the vote
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concerning this decision. The cost included for this Management Bonus Plan (for the key management
group) in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 amounted to
€616,191.
In connection with the Board decision of 19 December 2006 concerning the establishment of the level of
the 2006 bonus for the CEO (Mr van de Stolpe) at a certain percentage of his gross salary in case the
ProSkelia acquisition and the private placement related thereto is successfully closed (and at 10% lower
percentage if this is not the case) (the payment of half of which is deferred for three years, and subject to
the performance of the Galapagos stock price), his 2007 salary increase (4%) and the principle of a future
warrant grant to him (number of warrant to be defined in the future), the procedure of article 523 BCC
was followed: it had been explained to the Board that the award of said benefits was proposed upon
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee as a justified reward for the results achieved by Mr van
de Stolpe in 2006. The cost included for the abovementioned CEO bonus in the consolidated financial
statements ended on 31 December 2006 amounted to €203,562. The award of these benefits will have
no material impact on the financial position of the company. The Board shared the opinion of the
Remuneration Committee that the proposed benefits are justified and reasonable. Mr van de Stolpe has
not taken part in the deliberation and the vote concerning this decision.
In 2006, there have been no arrangements or understandings with major shareholders pursuant to which
a representative of such shareholder became a Board Member or Executive Committee member of the
Company.
30. Remuneration of key management personnel
On 31 December 2006, the Executive Committee comprised eight members, Mr Van de Stolpe, Dr Pollet,
Dr Dixon, Mr Hoekema, Dr Newton, Mr Phillips, Mr Smith and Mr Neale. Their combined remuneration
package comprises:
Thousands of € (except for the Number of warrants)
2006
2005
2004
Short-term employee benefits
2,097
1,271
574
Post-employment benefits
296
78
46
Total benefits excluding warrants
2,393
1,349
620
Number of warrants offered in the year
80,000
361,250
The Executive directors provide their services full time for the Group. Their remuneration includes all
costs for the Group, including retirement contributions made by the executive directors. The warrants
offered to the executive directors are under the same conditions as set out in note 28. These warrants
are granted under the Belgian 2005, 2002 and 1999 plans.
The retirement benefits to the Executive Committee, excluding the executive directors, are part of the
retirement benefit scheme to which all qualified personnel are entitled. The contributions are paid as a
percentage of the gross annual salary.
Certain employees, including the Executive Committee, are part of a Group bonus scheme established in
2006 where half of the bonus is paid immediately post year end and half is deferred for three years. The
deferred component is only payable in full provided that the growth in the company share price has
exceeded the growth in the FTSE Actuaries Share Index of Pharmaceutical and Biotechnology over the
same three year period. Where the Company share price underperforms against the index, then the
payout is reduced, with no payment made if the Company underperforms by more than 10%. The
Company has taken a charge to G&A of €200,000 to cover this contingent liability.
In 2006, the members of the Executive Committee (including the CEO) were paid an aggregate amount of
€1,739,993 in salaries and an aggregate amount of €683,000 in bonuses. Other components of their
remuneration include contributions to the Company’s pension and health insurance schemes, and certain
fringe benefits of non-material value.
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Only the CEO is a member of both the Executive Committee and the Board of Directors. The CEO does
not receive any special remuneration for his work on the Board of Directors, as this is part of his total
remuneration package in his capacity as member of the Executive Committee.
The Company and its subsidiaries have provided or processed €296,000 for pensions, severance payment,
or similar advantages or benefits for members of the Executive Committee.
No loans, quasi-loans or other guarantees have been given to members of the Executive Committee.

Transactions with non-executive directors
In connection with the compensation of independent Directors, the annual shareholders’ meeting (AGM)
of 4 April 2006 fixed the annual remuneration for independent Directors for the exercise of their mandate
as a Director of the Company at €20,000 plus expenses and resolved to pay an additional compensation
of €5,000 to the chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors for his activities as chairman
of the Audit Committee. Until the IPO, the independent members of the Board received a Board fee of
€1,500 per Board meeting, as well as expense reimbursement. After the IPO, they received a fixed
annual amount of €20,000. In 2006, a total amount of €45,000 was paid to the independent Directors as
Board fees (including for chairing the Audit Committee) and €2,807 as expenses. In 2005, €41,000 was
paid as Board fees and expenses; in 2004, €6,000 was paid as Board fees and expenses.
The aforementioned AGM fixed the annual remuneration for non-executive Directors who are not
independent Directors and who do not represent a shareholder at €20,000 plus expenses. In 2006, a
total amount of €50,000 was paid to such Directors (including a payment of €10,000 to Dr Stone in
connection with his stepping down from the Board effective 31 December 2006; see also note 29) and
€729 as expenses. In 2004 and 2005, there were no Directors belonging to this category.
The aforementioned AGM resolved that in case a Director attends less than 75% of the meetings of the
Board of Directors, the annual amounts mentioned in the two paragraphs here above shall be reduced pro
rata the absence score of such Director. No such principle applied in 2004 and 2005.
The aforementioned AGM resolved that the Directors who represent a shareholder on the Board of
Directors will only receive reimbursement for the expenses they incur for attending meetings of the Board
of Directors and no other compensation or fees for their Board membership. In 2006, a total amount of
€3,167 was paid as expenses to such Directors. Also in 2004 and 2005, non-executive directors that
represented one of the Group’s shareholders received no compensation for their position as director, but
only expense reimbursements. In 2004, €13,000 was paid as expenses and in 2005, €26,000 was paid as
expenses.
In 2006, a total of £50,000 was paid as consultancy fees to the Chairman of the Board, who did not
receive any fee as compensation for his Board membership, under a consultancy agreement effective as
of 1 August 2005 (see also note 29). No other consultancy fees were paid to Board members in 2006. In
2005, a total of €115,000 was paid as consultancy fees to Board members and in 2004 a total amount of
€120,00 was so paid.
In 2006, 53,500 warrants were granted to non-executive Directors. In 2005, the number of warrants
granted to non-executive Directors was 10,000 and in 2004 it was 38,750.
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31. Consolidated companies
Name of the subsidiary
Galapagos Genomics BV
BioFocus plc
BioFocus Discovery Ltd
Cambridge Drug Discovery (Holdings) Ltd
Cambridge Discovery Limited
Cambridge Genetics Limited
BioFocus Inc
Compound Focus Inc
BioFocus DPI AG
(formerly Discovery Partners International AG)
Discovery Partners International GmbH
BioFocus DPI Inc
(formerly ChemRX Advanced Technologies Inc)
Xenometrix Inc
BioFocus DPI LLC
(formerly Discovery Partners International LLC)
Inpharmatica Ltd
ProSkelia SASU

Country
The Netherlands
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United States
United States

% voting
right
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Change in % voting
right previous
period

100%

Switzerland
Germany

100%
100%

100%
100%

United States
United States

100%
100%

100%
100%

Japan
United Kingdom
France

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

32. Acquisition of subsidiaries
On July 6 2006, the Group acquired the operating units of Discovery Partners International (DPI, Inc) for
a consideration entirely in cash. DPI, Inc was not acquired, but the companies acquired are listed below:
• BioFocus DPI Inc, US (formerly ChemRX Advanced Technologies Inc)
• BioFocus DPI AG, Switzerland (formerly Discovery Partners International AG)
• Discovery Partners International GmbH, Germany
• BioFocus DPI LLC, Japan (formerly Discovery Partners International LLC)
• Xenometrix Inc, US
The purchase price consisted of €4,250,000 in cash. The difference between the acquisition price and the
fair values of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the entities listed above gave rise to a
discount on acquisition (“negative goodwill”). After initially calculating negative goodwill, the fair values
were reassessed. However, it was subsequently concluded that it was a bargain purchase because the bid
was all in cash and all DPI operating companies were included in the offer. The reason that such a
purchase price was accepted is that, in order to meet its obligations to Infinity Pharmaceuticals Inc, its
potential buyer, DPI Inc had to dispose of its operations before the acquisition would take place.
The former DPI companies contributed €816,000 profit to the Group’s loss before tax for the period
between the acquisition date and the balance sheet date. The profit includes negative goodwill which was
immediately recognized in the income statement under “Other income”.
On December 6, 2006, the Group acquired all shares of Inpharmatica Ltd, a company incorporated in the
UK. The purchase price consisted of €12,500,000 in an all-share transaction and a potential all-share earn
out with maximum payments of €6,600,000. The new shares (maximum 2,166,532) will be issued to the
shareholders in three trances. The first tranche of 623,582 new Galapagos shares were issued in
December 2006. The two subsequent tranches are due to be issued in April and May 2007. The goodwill
on consolidation mainly relates to operating synergies and assembled workforce.
The fair value of the equity instruments issued was determined by taking the average closing market price
over the 30 days prior to the acceptance of the offer.
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Inpharmatica contributed €623,000 profit to the Group’s loss before tax for the period between the
acquisition date and the balance sheet date.
On December 22, 2006, Galapagos NV acquired ProSkelia SASU, a company incorporated under the laws
of France. The acquisition price consists of €12,500,000 in newly issued Galapagos shares and will be
eligible to earn-out payments in cash of up to €14,500,000. The goodwill on acquisition relates mainly to
operating synergies and assembled workforce.
The fair value of the equity instruments issued was determined by taking the average closing market price
over the 30 days prior to the acceptance of the offer.
ProSkelia contributed no profit or loss to the Group loss before tax in the period between the date of
acquisition and the balance sheet date.
Provisional values have been used for fair value assessment as management believe that further
information may come to light during the process of integrating the businesses.
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the above companies and BioFocus as at the
dates of the acquisition were:
2006
Book value Fair value
15,129
30,068
14,071
29,010
727
727
331
331

Thousands of €
Non-current assets
Tangible and intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Other investments
Current assets
Inventory
Trade debtors
Other receivables

2005
Book value
Fair value
34,521
12,058
31,700
11,071
2,821

987

10,725
3,462
5,974
1,289

10,951
4,023
5,639
1,289

36,655
650
4,159
31,846

36,655
650
4,159
31,846

Non-current liabilities
Long-term debts, interest-bearing liabilities

7,232
7,232

6,544
6,544

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Other Payables

6,123
4,179
1,944

11,044
4,179
6,865

10,021
3,814
6,207

10,464
4,264
6,200

38,429

49,135

35,225

11,100

Net-identifiable assets and liabilities

1,445
1,445

Goodwill (negative goodwill) on acquisition

4,812

29,481

Received consideration
Acquired cash
Purchase price incuding cost
Costs of acquisition

30,716
19,848
22,584
-533

1,289
40,581

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are carried in terms of
historical costs using the exchange rate at the date of acquisition.
If the acquisitions had been completed on the first day of the financial year, Group revenues for the
period would have been €47,617,000 and the Group loss attributable to equity holders of the parent
would have been €38,818,000.
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The proforma loss is not necessarily a reliable indictor of future performance because of a number of
factors as set out below:
•

DPI underwent a major restructuring in the first half of 2006 (pre-acquisition) due to the loss of its
most significant customer. Because of this, DPI recorded restructuring costs of €1,290,000 and
furthermore, operated well below capacity. Whilst management sought a buyer, it was difficult to
secure new contracts and consequently suffered significant operating losses.

•

Inpharmatica significantly reduced its R&D expenditure during the 11 months to 30 November 2006.
Headcount fell by more than 40 in this period, and associated severance costs amounted to
€1,090,000, so by the time the acquisition took place, the cost base was much reduced and the
workforce was focused on the potentially most profitable areas of the business.

33. Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash
generating units to which the goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the entity
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate present value. The carrying amount of goodwill at the balance sheet date was
€35,560,000 (2005: €29,481,000, 2004: €Nil). No impairment loss was recognized during 2006 or 2005.
Details of the assumptions used in testing goodwill for impairment are given in note stet.

Fair valuation of net assets of subsidiary on acquisition

In determining the fair values of the net assets at the date of acquisition, certain estimates had to be
made by management. Independent professional valuation specialists were employed to ensure that
management estimates were reasonable and would not give rise to material misstatement of fair values.
34. Audit fees
Audit fees in Belgium in relation to the statutory audit mandate of the auditor amounted to €64,900 in
2006. The world-wide non-audit fees provided by the auditor in 2006 amounted to €305,000, and related
to other rendered services, mainly additional works work due to the change in consolidation scope, the
review of purchase price allocation exercises, legal missions and tax related services.
35. Events subsequent to the balance sheet date
The following significant events were announced by the Group after the end of the financial year:
• Expansion of longstanding collaboration with Amgen into 2008
• Resignations of Wilson Totten and David Stone from the board of Directors
• Appointment of Rudi Pauwels as new, independent Board member, effective 1 January 2007;
• License agreement with Hillcrest Pharmaceuticals for the PPAR-S program with license fees amounting
to €770,000, up to €27M in potential milestones, undisclosed milestone payments in Hillcrest equity
and single digit royalties on commercial products arising from the program
• New services collaboration with the University of Bristol with a total contract value in excess of
€2,000,000 over 2 years
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Board of Directors’ Report to the Shareholders for the Financial Year ending December 31,
2006 (non consolidated results)
Ladies and gentlemen,
Dear shareholders,
We hereby have the pleasure of presenting to you our report relating to Galapagos NV’s non-consolidated
results during the financial year that ended on December 31, 2006. Galapagos NV is hereafter also
referred to as “Company”.
Overview of development, result and position of the company
Our major achievements during 2006 included the following: We signed our first turn-key drug discovery
alliance with GlaxoSmithKline in the field of osteoarthritis, through an agreement worth up to €137 million
plus double-digit royalties to Galapagos. The year 2006 also marked an important step towards reaching
our goal to develop novel drugs in bone and joint diseases, with significant progress in our internal drug
development programs as well as the acquisition of the ProSkelia R&D program portfolio. The Company
raised €42 million in two private placements this year to fund the development of the combined
development programs in bone and joint diseases into the clinical testing phase. Our BioFocus DPI
service division was expanded through two acquisitions, and is now one of the world’s leading providers
of target and drug discovery services. We enter 2007 as a well-balanced company, combining a
therapeutics division developing a strong portfolio in bone and joint diseases with our BioFocus DPI
service division that provides superior service for pharma, biotech and non-profit organizations in their
need for targets through to preclinical candidates.
Galapagos NV’s operating income in 2006 amounted to €7.6 million compared to €3.3 million in 2005.
Income from sales amounted to €7.0 million and includes revenues from the GSK alliance in osteoarthritis,
income from research and development agreements (FTEs), contract production (CPU), and fees for
access to our viral libraries. The other operating income amounts to €0.6 million relating to grants we
received for our R&D projects.
Our operating costs of 2006 amounted to €20.6 million compared to €15.8 million in 2005. Purchases
increased to €1.8 million compared to €0.9 million in 2005, driven by the increased medicinal chemistry
activities in the Company’s internal R&D programs. Services and other goods increased to €13.7 million
compared to €10.5 million in 2005, mainly as a result of the costs related to the integration of the DPI
operations, Inpharmatica, and ProSkelia, as well as the costs of the private placements on 19 September
and 22 December 2006, and the increased outsourcing for development of our internal pipeline.
Personnel costs in 2006 amounted to €4.4 million compared to €3.6 million in 2005. While retaining our
core team of biologists and chemists in 2006, we also were successful in attracting a total of 30 new
employees, including 10 chemists and 15 biologists, while seeing six employees leave us. The number of
employees with Galapagos NV has increased to 80 at the end of 2006.
Depreciation amounted to €0.6 million compared to €0.5 million in 2005; this increase is due to the
completion and depreciation of the new chemistry facilities in Mechelen in 2006. The other operational
costs decreased to €0.1 compared to €0.2 in 2005; this decrease is due to the fact that stamp duties were
incurred in connection with the acquisition of the share capital of BioFocus plc in 2005.
Galapagos NV’s 2006 financial income remained the same at €0.3 million. Our 2006 financial costs
amounted to €0.4 million compared to €0.2 million in 2005; the increase was due to leasing costs
associated with the chemistry laboratories in 2006.
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The Company’s extraordinary income of 2006 amounted to €3,000 resulting from gains on disposal of
fixed assets. No extraordinary costs were incurred in 2006.
Investments in 2006 totalled 2.8 million. They consisted of €0.1 million for investments in intangible
assets (software licenses) and €0.6 million for investments in tangible fixed assets relating to laboratory
equipment, hardware, and technical equipment. The remaining €0.1 million relates to assets under
construction. There was an increase of the leasing of € 2 million related to the new chemistry laboratory,
operational in 2006.
Galapagos NV’s cash position at the end of 2006 amounted to €37.7 million, largely attributable to the
cash proceeds arising from the private placements of 19 September 2006 (€11 million) and 22 December
2006 (€31 million).
The non-consolidated annual accounts of Galapagos NV that we submit for your approval are established
in accordance with Belgian accounting rules as well as the legal and statutory requirements. They show a
negative result. The financial year 2006 closed with a loss of €13.0 million. The Company intends to
carry over this result to the following financial year.
In 2006, the Company has not made use of financial instruments (e.g. hedging).
The Company continued to hold the necessary permits for its exploitation, and environmental rules were
carefully respected.
Activities in the area of research and development
Expenditures in research and development amounted to million €16.9 million in 2006.
These expenditures relate to our biology and chemistry activities for our internal projects as well as to
activities in research collaborations with third parties.
We significantly increased our investment in research, and this has allowed our scientists to make
significant progress in finding lead compounds against several of our proprietary drug targets:
In our rheumatoid arthritis (RA) program, lead compounds have shown good pharmacokinetic properties
and efficacy in relevant animal models of the disease. These molecules also show substantial protection
against bone loss in the industry standard RA animal models. The compounds target a proprietary kinase
protein that was identified using the Galapagos’ SilenceSelect target discovery platform. Based on these
encouraging results, Galapagos anticipates initiation of pre-clinical studies in 2007, with the potential of a
candidate drug entering clinical Phase I in 2008.
On 7 June 2006, Galapagos and GlaxoSmithKline’s Center of Excellence for External Drug Discovery
announced a turn-key drug discovery and development alliance in osteoarthritis (OA) worth €137 million
in upfront, milestone, and equity payments and up to double-digit royalties on commercial products.
Galapagos will build upon its existing OA program to deliver drug candidates from target through to
clinical Phase IIa proof of concept. This alliance validated the Company’s target discovery platform as
well as our drug discovery capabilities. In this program, Galapagos reported the achievement of Proof of
Principle with compounds against its proprietary targets, showing ex vivo protection of bovine cartilage
explants. Galapagos has several series of compounds in hit-to-lead and lead optimization that have
potential to deliver novel therapeutics for the treatment of OA.
With the acquisition of ProSkelia on 22 December 2006, Galapagos enhanced its product portfolio with the
addition of three programs in bone diseases (two for osteoporosis and one for bone metastasis), and one
in cachexia (muscle atrophy and weight loss). The combined drug discovery portfolio will contribute to
Galapagos’ goal of having multiple clinical programs in bone and joint diseases by the end of 2008. The
transaction with ProSkelia also included an exclusive license option to oestradiol glucoside (E2G), a
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product for treatment of ‘hot flashes’, a menopausal symptom. Galapagos has started the preparations to
initiate a Phase IIb clinical trial for this compound in Q4 of 2007. In addition to its programs, the
acquisition of ProSkelia contributes capabilities and facilities that will greatly accelerate the Galapagos
programs in bone and joint diseases.
Capital increases and issue of shares
On 1 January 2006, the share capital of Galapagos NV was €68,979,568.99, represented by 12,674,122
shares.
On January 9, 2006, the share capital of Galapagos NV was increased with €1,496,891.55 represented by
274,659 shares. This capital increase occurred following the end of the compulsory acquisition procedure
in connection with the acquisition of BioFocus.
On 3 February 2006, within the framework of the authorized capital, the Board of Directors created the
Warrant Plan 2006 Belgium/The Netherlands for employees, directors and consultants, under which
350,000 warrants were created. No warrants have been exercised under this plan per 31 December
2006.
On 23 March 2006, a total of 407,850 warrants were exercised by employees under the Warrant Plan
2002 Belgium, resulting in a capital increase of €407,850 and the issue of 101,962 new shares.
On 12 May 2006, within the framework of the authorized capital, the Board of Directors created the
Warrant Plan 2006 UK, substantially for UK based employees of the Galapagos Group, under which
453,715 warrants were created. No warrants have been exercised under this plan per 31 December
2006.
On 19 September 2006, within the framework of the authorized capital, the Board of Directors decided to
increase the share capital of the Company with €7,087,856.89 (plus €4,005,273.11 in issuance premium)
by means of a private placement, wholly subscribed by Fortis Bank NV (Belgium), resulting in the issuance
of 1,305,074 new shares.
In December 2006, Galapagos NV acquired Inpharmatica Limited. The acquisition price of Inpharmatica
consisted of three components: the ongoing business was valued at €6.5 million, the estimated cash at an
additional €6 million and the potential maximum earn-out related to commercial milestones at €6.6
million. Galapagos will issue the new shares, on the basis of €8.82 per share (the average share price of
Galapagos over the last thirty days prior to 5 December 2006). On 8 December 2006, as consideration
for this acquisition of Inpharmatica Limited and within the framework of the authorized capital, the Board
of Directors decided to increase the capital of the Company by the issuance of maximum 2,165,532 new
shares under the suspending condition of the actual contribution in kind to Galapagos’ assets of
41,487,248 “C Preference” shares of Inpharmatica Limited as well as under certain other suspending
conditions. On the same day, the Board of Directors established that 31,033,843 of such Inpharmatica “C
Preference” shares were actually contributed, and therefore resolved to increase the share capital of
Galapagos by €2,537,433.60 (plus €1,576,567.20 in issuance premium) and to issue 466,440 new shares
to the relevant contributing Inpharmatica shareholders. The second tranche of shares is expected to be
issued in April 2007. The third tranche of shares is expected to be issued in May 2007. The exact
number of shares to be issued in these two tranches at each time will depend upon certain confidential
contractual provisions that have been set forth in the Inpharmatica acquisition agreement. The maximum
number of shares that still can be issued in the second and the third tranche is 1,541,950.
On 21 December 2006, the Board of Directors established that the remaining 10,453,405 of the
aforementioned Inpharmatica “C Preference” shares were actually contributed in kind and in consideration
therefore resolved to increase the share capital of Galapagos by €854,852.48 (plus €531,139.96 in
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issuance premium) and to issue 157,142 new shares to the relevant contributing Inpharmatica
shareholders.
On 21 December 2006, a total of 46,400 warrants (in which 4 warrants give rights to purchase 1 share
following the reverse split 1:4 of the shares in 2005) were exercised by employees, as follows: (i) 4,800
warrants under the Warrant Plan 1999 Belgium and 11,600 warrants under the Warrant Plan 2002
Belgium, with exercise price of €1.00 per warrant; and (ii) 30,000 warrants under the Warrant Plan 2002
The Netherlands, with exercise price of €1.17 per warrant. This exercise of warrants resulted in a capital
increase of €51,500.00 and the issue of 11,600 new shares.
On 22 December 2006, within the framework of the authorized capital and in conjunction with the
acquisition of ProSkelia SASU, the Board of Directors decided to increase the share capital of the Company
by €18,842,457 (plus €12,157,543 in issuance premium) through a private placement of new shares with
institutional investors in the US and Europe, resulting in the issuance of 3,463,683 new shares.
On 22 December 2006, within the framework of the authorized capital, the Board of Directors decided: (i)
to increase the capital of the Company by the issuance to ProSkelia BV of 1,396,648 new shares in
consideration for the contribution in kind to Galapagos’ assets by ProSkelia BV of 100% of the shares of
ProSkelia SASU, and consequently (ii) to increase the share capital of the Company by €7,597,765 (plus
€4,902,235 in issuance premium).
On 31 December 2006, the Company’s share capital was of €107,856,175.51, represented by 19,851,330
shares without nominal value. All shares are issued and fully paid up and are of the same class.
Information concerning the Company’s subsidiaries
During the year 2006, Galapagos acquired the drug discovery activities of Discovery Partners International
Inc. (USA) for €4.25 million in cash. Subsequently, Galapagos’ service division BioFocus was renamed
“BioFocus DPI,” and obtained a top tier position in drug discovery services. As a result of the acquisition,
Galapagos not only strengthened the offering and operating capacity of its service division, but also
acquired additional capacity for its turnkey alliance with GlaxoSmithKline.
Galapagos acquired Inpharmatica Limited (UK) through an all-share offer,. The acquired Admensa and
Chematica platforms were integrated into the BioFocus DPI service division offering, thereby enhancing
the division’s ability to help clients select drug targets and compounds throughout the drug discovery
process. The acquisition price of Inpharmatica is in three components: the ongoing business is valued at
€6.5 million, the estimated cash at an additional €6 million (of which half is due by 31 December 2006),
and the potential maximum earn-out related to commercial milestones at €6.6 million.
Galapagos further acquired ProSkelia SASU (France) from ProStrakan Group plc (UK), whereby it obtained
R&D operations focused on bone diseases as well as a portfolio of three R&D programs in bone diseases
(osteoporosis and bone metastasis), and one program in cachexia (muscle atrophy and weight loss). The
transaction includes an exclusive option and license to oestradiol glucoside, a product that has
successfully completed a phase IIa clinical study for treatment of menopausal symptoms (‘hot flashes’).
The acquisition price of ProSkelia comprises €12.5 million in newly issued Galapagos shares. This price is
partially offset by estimated cash tax refunds of €9 million over the coming four years. In addition,
ProStrakan will be eligible for earn-out payments capped at €14.5 million, as part of future income that
Galapagos will derive from the acquired pre-clinical programs. For the license on E2G, ProStrakan will
receive €5 million plus a fixed amount of licensing revenues receivable by Galapagos, as well as single
digit royalties on product sales. These payments to ProStrakan for the E2G program are conditional to
successful completion of Phase IIb clinical trials and the outlicensing of the product. In addition,
ProStrakan has right of first refusal on the cachexia program, should Galapagos decide to partner or outlicense this.
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As a consequence of these acquisitions, at the end of 2006, Galapagos NV had subsidiaries in the
Netherlands (Galapagos Genomics BV), UK (BioFocus plc, BioFocus Discovery Ltd, Cambridge Drug
Discovery Holding Ltd, Cambridge Discovery Ltd, Cambridge Genetics Ltd, Inpharmatica Ltd,), in the US
(BioFocus Inc, Compound Focus Inc, BioFocus DPI Inc, Xenometrix Inc), Switzerland (BioFocus DPI AG),
Germany (Discovery Partners International GmbH), Japan (BioFocus DPI LLC), and France (ProSkelia
SASU).
Risk factors
Typically for a biotechnology group, the Company is confronted with a number of risks and uncertainties.
We want to highlight the following risks: (i) the success of Galapagos is uncertain due to its limited
operating history, its history of operating losses and the uncertainty of future profitability, (ii) Galapagos
will need additional capital in the future to sufficiently fund its operations and research; (iii) there is a high
risk that early-stage drug discovery and development might not successfully generate good drug
candidates; (iv) Galapagos might not be able to commercialize its drug candidates successfully if problems
arise in the testing and approval process or if competitors develop technologies which are more effective
than those of Galapagos (v) most of Galapagos’ expected future revenues are contingent upon
collaborative and license agreements; (vi) Galapagos’ success is dependent on intellectual property rights
held by it and third parties and its interest in such rights is complex and uncertain; (vii) due to its lack of
experience in conducting clinical trials and manufacturing, Galapagos needs to rely on third parties which
may delay its clinical trials, or may jeopardize regulatory approval for its product candidates if such third
parties do not perform as contractually required or expected.
Conflicting interests of directors
In connection with the acquisition of Inpharmatica Ltd by Galapagos in December 2006: among the
shareholders of Inpharmatica were a number of venture capital investment funds belonging to the Advent
Venture Partners group (London, UK). As Dr Parekh was a General Partner with Advent Venture Partners
(a minority shareholder of Inpharmatica Limited), Dr Parekh has not participated in the deliberations and
votes that took place in the Board in connection with the acquisition of Inpharmatica, in accordance with
article 523 BCC. The rationale for and the financial implications of the transaction were explained in a
special report of the Board per article 602 of the BCC and can be summarized as follows: The Company
acquired Inpharmatica in the context of its strategy to build a worldwide leading position in drug
discovery services; the acquisition will contribute to the Company’s capability to enter into turn-key drug
discovery alliances with pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, as well as to support its own
internal drug discovery pipeline. The Company will, based on a share price of €8.82 (the 30 day average
of the Company’s share closing price up to 5 December 2006) issue a maximum of 2,165,582 new shares,
i.e. a maximum capital increase with €19,099,992.24 (including issuance premium). The exact number of
shares to be allotted to Inpharmatica shareholders will depend on the achievement of certain conditions
(including the cash balance of Inpharmatica) agreed upon in the acquisition agreement. The shares will
be issued in 3 tranches. A first tranche of 623,582 shares has been allotted on 8 December and 21
December 2006; the next two tranches will be calculated and allotted in April and May 2007.
At the Board meeting of October 10, 2006, the following was written down: “The acting Chairman
informed the Board of a declaration of conflicting interest, in connection with project “Inpharmatica”,
made by Raj Parekh who in his capacity of general partner of Advent Venture Partners (a shareholder of
Inpharmatica) holds a position within Advent similar to a position of a board member of a Belgian
company. Dr Parekh did not attend this meeting of the Board and consequently did not participate in the
deliberations or vote.”
At the Board meeting of November 7, 2006, the following was written down: “Dr Parekh informed the
Board of a conflicting interest he has in connection with project “Inpharmatica” and explained that, in his
capacity of general partner of Advent Venture Partners (a shareholder of “Inpharmatica”), he holds a
position within Advent that has similarities with the position of an executive board member of a Belgian
company. Because of this conflicting interest, Dr Parekh did not participate in the deliberation and vote
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on this agenda item. The financial consequences for Galapagos of the acquisition of Inpharmatica will be
set forth in a special board report ex article 602 BCC.”
In connection with the acquisition of ProSkelia SASU by Galapagos in December 2006. As Dr Wilson
Totten, a member of the Board of Galapagos, was also CEO of ProStrakan Group plc, the ultimate parent
company of ProSkelia SASU, Dr Totten did at no point in time participate in the Board’s deliberations and
votes relating to this acquisition project, in accordance with article 523 BCC. The rationale for and the
financial implications of the transaction were explained in a special report of the Board per article 602 of
the BCC and can be summarized as follows: With its programs in rheumatoid arthritis, its GSK alliance in
osteoarthritis, and the acquisition of the ProSkelia programs, the Company is becoming a leader in the
discovery and development of small molecule drugs to treat bone and joint diseases. With the licensing
of ProStrakan’s E2G program, the Company will be able to execute a phase IIb trial and build the
necessary infrastructure to progress its other products into and through clinical testing. Additionally, the
Company expands its collaborations with leading pharma and biotech companies, while operating a fast
growing business unit in drug discovery services. The acquisition price of ProSkelia comprises €12.5
million (including issuance premium) in newly issued Galapagos shares (1,396,648 shares) on the basis of
€8.95 per share (the average Galapagos share price over the last thirty days prior to 22 December 2006
as quoted on Euronext Amsterdam). This price is partially offset by estimated cash tax refunds of €9
million over the coming four years. In addition, ProStrakan will be eligible for earn-out payments capped
at €14.5 million, as part of future income that the Company will derive from the acquired pre-clinical
programs. For the license on E2G, ProStrakan will receive €5 million plus a fixed amount of licensing
revenues receivable by Galapagos, as well as single digit royalties. These payments to ProStrakan for the
E2G program are conditional to successful completion of Phase IIb clinical trials and partnering of the
product. In addition, ProStrakan has right of first refusal on the cachexia program, should the Company
decide to partner or out-license this.
At the Board meeting of October 10, 2006, the following was written down: “Wilson Totten called in
(phone) at 13h00 to present in general and neutral terms the background of why ProSkelia is in the
offering, and to answer the Board’s factual questions relating to ProSkelia. Mr Totten stressed that in this
call he acted solely in his capacity of CEO of the Group of which ProSkelia is part. Not at any time during
his telephonic attendance did he comment in his capacity as member of the board of Galapagos. He did
not participate in any deliberation or vote relating to ProSkelia. Mr Totten called off at 13h25.”
At the Board meeting of November 7, 2006, the following was written down: “The Board acknowledges
that Board member Dr Wilson Totten has informed the Board of a conflicting interest he has in connection
with project “ProSkelia” because of his capacity of CEO of the ultimate parent company of ProSkelia, that
Dr Totten did not attend this Board meeting and that at no point in time he has participated as a member
of the Galapagos Board in the deliberations and votes relating to project ProSkelia. If and when project
“ProSkelia” will be executed, the financial consequences for Galapagos of the acquisition of “ProSkelia”
will be set forth in a special board report ex article 602 BCC.”
At the Board meeting of December 12, 2006, the following was written down: “The Board acknowledged
that Board member Dr Wilson Totten has informed the Board of a conflicting interest he has in connection
with project “ProSkelia” because of his capacity of CEO of the ultimate parent company of ProSkelia, that
Dr Totten did not attend this Board meeting and that at no point in time he has participated as a member
of the Galapagos Board in the deliberations and votes relating to project ProSkelia. If and when project
“ProSkelia” will be executed, the financial consequences for Galapagos of the acquisition of “ProSkelia”
will be set forth in a special board report pursuant to article 602 BCC.”
In connection with the approval by the Board of 12 December 2006 of a €10,000 compensation for Dr
David Stone in connection with his stepping down from the Board two years before the end of his
mandate, Dr Stone did not participate in the deliberation and the vote, in application of article 523 BCC.
At the board meeting of December 19, the application of the article 523 BCC at the December 12 Board
meeting has been confirmed: “In application of article 523 of the Belgian Code of Companies the following
is reported in connection with the compensation for Dr David Stone: “The Chairman declares that Dr
David Stone has informed the Board of Directors of a conflict of interest concerning the compensation to
him in connection with his stepping down from the Board. It has been explained to the Board that such
compensation is proposed upon recommendation of the Remuneration Committee. The compensation will
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have no significant impact on the financial position of the company. The Board shares the opinion of the
Remuneration Committee that the proposed compensation is justified and reasonable. Dr Stone has not
taken part in the deliberation and the vote concerning this decision.”
In connection with the decision of the Board of 12 December 2006 to harmonize the vesting structure of
the warrants, granted to Directors under the 2002 Warrant Plan to make all vesting linear over a vesting
period of 36 months and thus bringing it in line with the 36-months vesting mechanism for Directors as
set forth in the 2005 Warrant Plan and the Warrant Plan 2006 Belgium/The Netherlands, the Directors
involved (Dr Parekh, Mr Verdonck, Dr Totten and Dr Ross) did not participate in the deliberation and vote
insofar as they were affected (Dr Totten did not attend the meeting), in application of article 523 BCC.
The linear vesting over 36 months will have no impact on the financial position of the company.
At the Board of December 19, 2006, the application of the article 523 BCC at the December 12 Board
meeting has been confirmed: “In application of article 523 of the Belgian Code of Companies the following
is reported in connection with the harmonization of the vesting period of warrants for non-executive
directors, granted under the 2002 Warrant Plan, to a linear vesting over 36 months: “The Chairman
declares that he himself, Mr Verdonck, Dr Totten and Dr Ross have informed the Board of Directors of a
conflict of interest concerning said harmonization insofar it may apply to each of them respectively. It has
been explained to the Board that such harmonization is proposed upon recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee and is justified to bring the vesting in line with the vesting period for directors
as set forth in the 2005 Warrant Plan and the Warrant Plan 2006 Belgium/The Netherlands. The linear
vesting over 36 months will have no impact on the financial position of the company. The Board shares
the opinion of the Remuneration Committee that the proposed change to a linear vesting over 36 months
is justified and reasonable. Dr Parekh, Mr Verdonck, Dr Ross and Dr Totten did not take part in the
deliberation and the vote concerning this decision, insofar as they were affected (Dr Totten did not attend
the meeting).”
In connection with the Board decision of 12 December 2006 establishing a Management Bonus Plan, the
procedure of article 523 BCC has been followed by and relating to the CEO, Mr van de Stolpe. The total
cost included for this Management Bonus Plan (for the entire key management group) in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 amounted to €616,191.
At the board meeting of December 19, 2006, the application of the article 523 BCC at the December 12,
2006 Board meeting has been confirmed: “In application of article 523 of the Belgian Code of Companies
the following is reported in connection with the Management Bonus Plan: “The Chairman declares that Mr
Onno van de Stolpe has informed the Board of Directors of a conflict of interest concerning the
Management Bonus Plan insofar it may apply to him. It has been explained to the Board that such
Management Bonus Plan is proposed upon recommendation of the Remuneration Committee and is a
justified reward for the results achieved by the company’s management group. The bonus awards (if
any) under this Management Bonus Plan will have no material impact on the financial position of the
company. The Board shares the opinion of the Remuneration Committee that the proposed Management
Bonus Plan is justified and reasonable. Mr van de Stolpe has not taken part in the deliberation and the
vote concerning this decision.”
In connection with the Board decision of 19 December 2006 concerning the establishment of the level of
the 2006 bonus for the CEO (Mr van de Stolpe) at a certain percentage of his gross salary in case the
ProSkelia acquisition and the private placement related thereto is successfully closed (and at 10% lower
percentage if this is not the case) (the payment of half of which is deferred for three years, and subject to
the performance of the Galapagos stock price), his 2007 salary increase (4%) and the principle of a future
warrant grant to him (number of warrant to be defined in the future), the procedure of article 523 BCC
was followed. The cost included for the abovementioned CEO bonus in the financial statements ended on
31 December 2006 amounted to €203,562. At the Board meeting of December 19, 2006, the following
was written down: “The Chairman declares that Mr Onno van de Stolpe has informed the Board of
Directors of a conflict of interest concerning the proposed award to him of a bonus, a salary increase, and
a possible future grant of warrants. It has been explained to the Board that the award of said benefits is
proposed upon recommendation of the Remuneration Committee and is a justified reward for the results
achieved by Mr van de Stolpe in 2006. The award of these benefits will have no material impact on the
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financial position of the company. The Board shares the opinion of the Remuneration Committee that the
proposed benefits are justified and reasonable. Mr van de Stolpe has not taken part in the deliberation
and the vote concerning this decision.”
In 2006, there have been no arrangements or understandings with major shareholders pursuant to which
a representative of such shareholder became a Board Member or Executive Committee member of the
Company.
Exceptional activities of the statutory auditor
Apart for the annual remuneration of €64,900 (plus expenses) for his mandate as statutory auditor, as
approved by the shareholders’ meeting of 4 April 2006, an aggregate additional payment of €122,794
(excluding VAT) has been made during the financial year 2006 to the auditor or to persons with whom he
works in a professional collaboration framework, for additional services as follows: (i) €53,490 for legal
missions in the framework of contributions in kind, exercise of warrants, etc; (ii) €12,135 for other
attestations; (iii) €15,249 for tax advice; and (iv) €41,920 as additional remuneration for his mandate as
statutory auditor, as a result of the change in the group of companies to be consolidated. The Board of
Directors is of the opinion that these ad hoc activities will not influence the opinion of the statutory
auditor in the performance of its statutory duties. The majority of the abovementioned additional fees
has been approved by the Audit Committee.
Significant events that took place after the end of the financial year
Galapagos announced the following after 31 December 2006:
• resignations of Wilson Totten (per 23 December 2006) and David Stone (per 31 December 2006)
from the Board of Directors;
• appointment of Rudi Pauwels as new, independent Board member per 1 January 2007.

Going concern and accounting standards
As the balance sheet of the Company shows a loss carry-over and the profit and loss account shows a
loss during two consecutive financial years, the Board has examined the accounting standards and is of
the opinion that the accounting standards can be applied under the assumption of continuity. Taking into
account the solid cash position and the favourable developments of the Company’s own drug discovery
activities and its subsidiaries’ service activities, the Board is of the opinion that it can submit the annual
accounts in view of continuity. The Board is also of the opinion that additional financing could be
obtained, if required.
Whilst Galapagos NV’s cash position is sufficient for the Company’s immediate and short term needs, the
Board points out that if the R&D activities continue to go well, the Company may need to seek additional
funding to support the continuing development of its pipeline. It can be expected that because of these
increasing expenditures and resulting losses the net assets of the Company, without further cash
injection, will again fall below half of the share capital within the next 2 years. If and when this happens,
the procedure according to article 633 of the Belgian Code of Companies will require the Board to draw up
a report to be submitted to the Shareholders Meeting to decide upon the continuation or cessation of
activities.
Relationship with important shareholders
Galapagos NV has no knowledge of the existence of any shareholders agreements between Galapagos’
shareholders, except for:
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•

•

•

the lock-up agreement among the pre-IPO shareholders whereby they will consult each other and
those willing to sell will act together should the IPO-managers (KBC Securities and Kempen & Co
together) consent to a sale of shares prior to the end of the two year lock-up period that started at
the IPO of 10 May 2005.
the lock-up agreement in respect of the former shareholders of Inpharmatica Limited by which the
holders of “C” Preference Shares of Inpharmatica who have contributed such Inpharmatica shares to
the capital of Galapagos and in consideration therefore have received Galapagos shares, are bound by
a lock-up until 10 May 2007. These shares in lock-up represent 3.14% of the total shares of
Galapagos at the end of 2006 (19,851,330).
the lock-up agreement in respect of the former shareholder of ProSkelia SASU, by which ProSkelia
B.V., i.e. the former shareholder of ProSkelia SASU who contributed its ProSkelia SASU shares to the
capital of Galapagos and in consideration therefore received Galapagos shares, is bound by a lock-up
until 21 December 2007. In a limited number of specific conditions however, defined in the Share
Contribution Agreement, deviations from this lock-up can be permitted. These shares in lock-up
represent 7.03% of the total shares of Galapagos at the end of 2006 (19,851,330).

Corporate governance
On 29 March 2005, the Board of Directors approved the Company’s Corporate Governance Charter, which
is available on the website of the Galapagos. This charter is in addition to the corporate governance
provisions included in the Belgian Code of Companies and in the Company’s articles of association. The
corporate governance rules aim at achieving an efficient management and an appropriate control of the
Company.
The Company’s Corporate Governance Charter includes the following specific rules and charters:
• Charter of the Board of Directors;
• Charter of the Audit Committee;
• Charter of the Nomination- and Remuneration Committee;
• Charter of the Executive Committee;
• Policy for transactions between the Company and its directors and executive managers;
• Protocols to avoid insider trading, relating to both the Belgian and the Dutch rules.
The Board of Directors expressed its opinion that clear understandings relating to corporate governance
contribute to long-term value creation and to a workable equilibrium between the entrepreneurship on the
one hand and the control functions of the management organisms on the other hand. The Board of
Directors has set as an objective that the principles of the Belgian Corporate Governance Code (the socalled “Lippens-Code”) be respected as scrupulously as possible. However, the Board of Directors also
determined that it is permissible not to comply with certain corporate governance principles when the
specific circumstances in which the Company operates are taken into account. In such cases, it shall
apply the principle of “comply or explain.”

Board of Directors

Galapagos’ Board of Directors consists of a minimum five and maximum nine members, including the
Chairman and the CEO. The Chairman is a non-executive director and does not hold the office of CEO.
The Board of Directors consists of at least three independent directors.
Except for Onno van de Stolpe, all Board members are non-executive Directors. In 2006, the following
persons were members of the Board: Raj Parekh, Onno van de Stolpe, Ferdinand Verdonck, Barry Ross,
Laurent Ganem, Harrold van Barlingen, Geoff McMillan, Wilson Totten (resigned effective 23 December
2006), and David Stone (resigned effective 31 December 2006).
The Directors are elected by the Shareholders Meeting for a maximum period of four years.
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According to the decision of the Annual General Meeting of 4 April 2006 the independent Directors receive
a remuneration of €20,000 per year. The Chairman of the Audit Committee receives an additional amount
of €5,000 for performing this activity. The non-executive Directors who do not qualify as independent
Directors and who do not represent a shareholder of the Company also receive remuneration for their
mandate as a Director of €20,000 per year. In the event a Director is less than 75% present on the
meetings of the Board of Directors, the amounts referred to above will be proportionally decreased.
Directors who represent a shareholder in the Board of Directors will only receive reimbursement of the
expenses incurred for participating in the Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Board of Directors, Dr
Raj Parekh, does not receive remuneration as the other Directors, nor is he entitled to reimbursement of
expenses as the other Directors. However, a consultancy contract was made with the Chairman of the
Company, under which the Chairman receives a monthly fee of £4,166 as compensation for giving
strategic advice.
For the avoidance of doubt, the CEO does not receive any special remuneration for his work on the Board
of Directors, as this is part of his total remuneration package in his capacity as member of the Executive
Committee. The Board of Directors points out that the Belgian Code on Corporate Governance does not
recommend granting warrants to non-executive Directors, as this code contains a provision which states
that non-executive Directors should not be entitled to performance-related remuneration such as stock
related long-term incentive schemes. In deviation to this provision, the Board of Directors decided to
grant warrants to non-executive directors. This way, the Company has additional possibilities to attract
competent non-executive Directors and to offer them an attractive additional remuneration without the
consequence that this additional remuneration weighs on the financial results of the Company.
Furthermore, the grant of warrants is a common use method in the sector in which the Company is
active. Without this possibility, the Company would be confronted with a considerable disadvantage
compared to competitors who do offer warrants to their non-executive Directors. The Board of Directors
is of the opinion that the granting of warrants has no negative impact on the function of the nonexecutive Director.
A meeting is validly held if an attendance quorum of at least half of the present or represented members
of the Board of Directors is met. Decisions of the Board of Directors are taken by normal majority.
Apart from the special board meetings relating to the grant of warrants and the cancellation of
preferential subscription rights with regard to the grant of warrants and the issuance of new shares in the
framework of acquisitions, the Board of Directors held 12 regular meetings in 2006.
The Board’s role is to pursue the long-term success of the Company by providing entrepreneurial
leadership and enabling risks to be assessed and managed.

Committees
The Nomination- and Remuneration Committee’s role is twofold: drafting recommendations to the Board
of Directors regarding the remuneration policy of Galapagos and the remuneration of directors and
members of the Executive Committee, and selecting the appropriate candidate-directors and making
recommendations to the Board of Directors in relation to the appointment of directors and members of
the Executive Committee.

The Nomination- and Remuneration Committee during 2006 consisted of the following three nonexecutive Directors, the majority of whom are independent Directors: Raj Parekh (Chairman), Ferdinand
Verdonck, and Wilson Totten.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee meets at least twice yearly. In 2006, the Nomination- and
Remuneration Committee held four meetings.
The role of the Audit Committee is to follow up on financial reporting and verification of financial data,
verify and follow up on the internal control mechanisms, evaluate and verify the effectiveness of the risk
assessment systems, and follow up on the internal and external audit activities.
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All members of the Audit Committee are non-executive Directors. The Chairman is an independent nonexecutive Director. The Audit Committee consists of the following three Directors: Ferdinand Verdonck
(Chairman), Barry Ross, and Raj Parekh.
In 2006, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings.
The tasks of the Executive Committee include the following matters: the research, identification and
development of strategic possibilities and proposals which may contribute to Galapagos’ development in
general, the drafting and development of policy guidelines to be approved by the Board of Directors,
Galapagos’ management through, among other things, the implementation of policy guidelines, the
supervision of the performance of the business in comparison with the strategic goals, plans and budgets,
and the support of the CEO with the day-to-day management of Galapagos.
The Executive Committee currently consists of eight (8) people, who need not be a Director: Onno van de
Stolpe, Graham Dixon, Andre Hoekema, Richard Neale, Chris Newton, David Philips, Dirk Pollet, David
Smith.
The Executive Committee meets regularly, and at least once a month.
***
Galapagos intends to publish a 2006 Registration Document and a Transaction Note during March 2007.
This document will contain more detailed information about risks, the businesses the company operates,
corporate governance, and the all-share transactions completed in December 2006. The 2006 Registration
Document and the Transaction Note will be made available on the Company website:
www.glpg.com/investor/financial_reports.htm.
The Board of Directors thanks you for the confidence you show in Galapagos.
The Board of Directors will submit to you proposals of resolutions to approve the annual accounts for the
financial year 2006, and to discharge the directors that were in office in 2006 and the Statutory Auditor,
for the exercise of their mandate during the financial year that ended on 31 December 2006.
Mechelen, 1 March 2007.
On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Onno van de Stolpe
CEO

Raj Parekh
Chairman
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SUMMARY OF THE NON-CONSOLIDATED STATUTORY ACCOUNTS OF GALAPAGOS NV. THIS
SUMMARY IS NOT A LEGAL DOCUMENT AND IS PROVIDED FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES
ONLY

AUDITED 2006 NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GALAPAGOS NV ABRIDGED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
ASSETS
Thousands of €
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets
Property Plant and Equipment
Financial Fixed Assets

2006
70,137
111
3,897
66,129

2005
30,735
10
2,356
28,369

2004
2,153
41
2,092
20

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade and Other Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents

49,422
185
11,239
37,998

24,521
143
4,922
19,456

12,125
98
2,888
9,139

119,559

55,256

14,278

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Thousands of €
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Obligations under finance lease
Payroll and tax liabilities

2006
19,709
18,257
442
1010

2005
5,050
4,200
115
735

2004
2,958
2,239
106
613

Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance lease

1,590
1,560

1,728
1,728

1,413
1,413

LIABILITIES

21,269

6,778

4,371

EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Share premium account
Accumulated loss

98,290
107,856
38,210
-47,776

48,478
68,980
14,293
-34,795

9,907
32,369
-22,462

119,559

55,256

14,278

TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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GALAPAGOS NV ABRIDGED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

Thousands of €/ as at 31 December

2006

2005

2004

Turnover
Other operating income

7,006
664

2,570
693

5,380
1,303

7,670

3,263

6,683

-1,767
-13,700
-4,369
-620
-99

-945
-10,510
-3,593
-488
-230

-1,196
-3,841
-3,594
-1,217
-37

-12,885

-12,503

-3,202

292
-391

335
-166

183
-627

-12,984

-12,334

-3,645

3

1

3

-12,981

-12,333

-3,642

-12,981

-12,333

-3,642

-34,795

-22,462

-18,820

-47,776

-34,795

-22,462

Operating income
Raw materials, consumables and goods for resale
Services and other goods
Remuneration, social security costs and pensions
Depreciation of and other amounts written off
Other operation charges
Operating loss
Investment revenues
Finance income/ (cost)
Loss on ordinary activities before taxes
Extraordinary income
Loss before taxes
Taxes
LOSS FOR THE YEAR
Loss brought forward
Loss to be carried forward
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